
By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have saved the Authority approx. £** in printing costs

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

AGENDA

Committee PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018, 1.30 PM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Keith Jones (Chair)
Councillors Lay, Ahmed, Asghar Ali, Congreve, Driscoll, Gordon, 
Hudson, Jacobsen, Jones-Pritchard, Murphy and Sattar

1  Apologies for Absence

2  Minutes

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2018

3  Declarations of Interest

To be made at the commencement of the agenda item in question, in accordance 
with the Members Code of Conduct.

4  Petitions

Petitions have been received in relation to the following applications in 
accordance with  Committee Meeting Procedural Rule 14.2.  The petitioners have 
been advised of their right to speak and the applicants/agents of their right to 
reply:

5  Development Control Applications

a  18/00735/MJR - Brains Brewery, Crawshay Street, Butetown

6  Applications decided by Delegated Powers - June 2018

7  Urgent Items (if any)

8  Date of Next Meeting - 15 August 2018



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Davina Fiore
Director Governance & Legal Services
Date:  Thursday, 5 July 2018
Contact:  Kate Rees, 029 2087 2427, krees@cardiff.gov.uk



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

WEBCASTING 

This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except 

where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on 
the website for 6 months.  A copy of it will also be retained in 

accordance with the Council’s data retention policy.

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have 
consented to being filmed.  By entering the body of the Chamber you 
are also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 

images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  
If you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the 

public gallery area.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please 
contact Committee Services on 02920 872020 or 

email Democratic Services

mailto:democraticservices@cardiff.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

PLANNING COMMITTEE

13 JUNE 2018

Present: Councillor Keith Jones(Chairperson)
Councillors Lay, Ahmed, Asghar Ali, Driscoll, Hudson, Jacobsen, 
Jones-Pritchard, Murphy and Sattar

1 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Councillor Iona Gordon.

2 :   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON & DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON 

To note that at the Annual Meeting on 24 May 2018, appointed Councillor Keith 
Jones as Chairperson of this Committee and Councillor Chris Lay as the Deputy 
Chairperson of this Committee.

3 :   APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The Annual Council meeting on 24 May 2018, appointed this Committee with the 
following Membership and Terms of Reference.

Membership:

Councillors Ahmed, Asghar Ali, Congreve, Driscoll, Gordon, Hudson, Jacobson, Keith 
Jones, Jones-Pritchard, Lay, Murphy and Sattar,

Terms of Reference:

Those functions listed in Section A of Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities Executive 
Arrangements (Function and Responsibilities) (Wales) Regulations 2001 and any 
amendments thereto and any matters ancillary thereto as defined in Regulation 4 (2) 
to (6) of the Regulations.

Those functions listed in paragraphs 1-12 of Section 1 of Schedule 1 of the Local 
Authorities Executive Arrangements (Function and Responsibilities) (Wales) 
Regulations 2001 and any amendments thereto and any matters ancillary thereto as 
defined in Regulation 4 (2) to (6) of the Regulations.

4 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 9 May 2018 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairperson.

5 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

COUNCILLOR ITEM NO REASON

Jones-Pritchard 18/00762/MNR Knows the neighbour 
and objector

Agenda Item 2



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

6 :   PETITIONS 

Application no: 18/00762/MNR, 304A Caerphilly Road, Canton 

The petitioner was not present.

7 :   DEVELOPMENT CONTROL APPLICATIONS 

The Committee considered the schedule of development control applications 
submitted in accordance with the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

RESOLVED:
That pursuant to this Committee’s delegated powers the following development 
control applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations as set 
out in the report of the Director City Operations subject to any further amendments as 
detailed below and notification be given of the decision in accordance with Section 74 
of the Planning (Listed Building & Conservation Act 1990).

APPLICATIONS GRANTED

18/00979/DCH – CATHAYS

42 TREHERBERT STREEET, CATHAYS, CARDIFF
Enlargement of rear annex at ground floor, extension at first floor and rear dormer.

17/02130/MJR – SPLOTT 

LAND AT ROVER WAY, PENGAM
The removal of fill material and the construction of a Biomass Power Plant (up to 
9.5mw) and a maximum of 130,000 sq. ft. of industrial accommodation (B8 use 
class), new access roads and associated landscaping works.

Subject to the amendments to the following conditions:

Condition 1A
‘...in writing for each phase of development before any development within that 
phase is commenced.’

Condition 4
New Title: VIRGIN WOOD FUEL SOURCE AND LIMIT. New opening sentence: Prior 
to beneficial occupation of the Biomass Plant hereby approved, details of the 
sustainable source of virgin wood to be processed at the plant shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Revised Reason: The 
application has been assessed on the basis of this annual tonnage limit and that the 
wood would derive from a sustainable source.. where issues related to potential 
deletion of resources at the origin, and the carbon impacts of transportation can be 
understood and managed.

Condition 9



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Insert title: CONTAMINATED LAND MEASURES – REMEDIATION AND 
VERIFICATION

Condition 14
Amended opening sentence: “No works below the membrane underlying the original 
capping layer or elsewhere below the overburden shall take place until a scheme of 
repairs to restore and maintain the integrity of the membrane where necessary 
following site investigation locations have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.

Condition 16
Amended wording: No development shall take place within any phase, with the 
exception of the removal of overburden from the site, until a drainage scheme for that 
phase of development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall demonstrate how that part of the development 
will be effectively drained; the means of disposal of surface water and demonstrate 
how foul flows will communicate to the public sewerage system. Thereafter, the 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the 
completion of that phase and no further surface water or land drainage shall be 
allowed to connect directly or indirectly with the public sewerage system.

Condition18
Prior to the approval of any reserved matters application for the Biomass Power Plant 
an Air Quality Assessment (AQA) for the detailed design of the Biomass Plant shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The AQA 
shall include an assessment of the impact of the plant emissions and any necessary 
mitigation measures to ensure the overall impacts of the plant are acceptable. The 
plant shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and maintained 
thereafter. Reason: To ensure air quality is maintained to satisfactory levels and to 
avoid any adverse effect upon the integrity of the Severn Estuary European Sites and 
the Severn Estuary SSSI.

Condition 19
Prior to beneficial occupation of the Biomass Power Plant a Noise Assessment (NA) 
shall be carried out and submitted to the Local Planning Authority to ensure the noise 
emitted from fixed plant and equipment on the site achieves a rating noise level of 
background -10dB at the nearest noise sensitive premises (Rover Way Traveller Site) 
when measured and corrected in accordance with BS 4142: 2014 (or any British 
Standard amending or superseding that standard). This assessment shall include an 
assessment of the impact of the noise from this proposed development after the 
removal of material from the site which may currently act as a noise barrier to the 
nearest noise sensitive receptors at the traveller site on Rover Way. The NA shall 
include details of any necessary mitigation measures to ensure the overall impacts of 
the plant are acceptable, which shall be implemented prior to beneficial occupation 
and maintained thereafter.

Condition 20
Deliveries, loading and unloading shall only take place at the site between the hours 
of 09:00 and 17:00 Monday to Saturday and at no time on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays.



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Condition 21
Insert ‘fill’ before ‘material’ in opening two sentences. Amend last sentence to ‘…prior 
to the removal of any fill material.’

Condition 24
Delete ‘hereby approved.’ Insert ‘…and/or to heat and power consumers in the 
vicinity and the…’

Condition 26
Amend to read ‘Prior to the commencement of any development on any phase…’ (i) 
is missing. Amend number formatting accordingly. Replace last sentence with: ‘The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved CEMP for that 
phase. Amend Reason: ‘In the interests of highway safety, protection of the 
environment and public amenity, and to avoid any adverse effect upon the integrity of 
the Severn Estuary European Sites and the Severn Estuary SSSI.’

Condition 27
Amend to read ‘Prior to the commencement of any development on any phase…’

Condition 28
Amend: ‘Prior to the construction of any building, the Rover Way/Site Access priority 
junction hereby approved (Drawing No. 173097/SK/11 Revision A) shall be approved 
in writing by the overseeing highway authority and implemented to their written 
satisfaction.

New Condition 38  (to be added)
INDUSTRIAL FLOORSPACE LIMIT
No more than 130,000 square feet of industrial accommodation (B8 Use Class) shall 
be constructed on the application site. Reason: The application has been assessed 
on the basis of this amount of floorspace. 

APPLICATIONS GRANTED ON EXECUTION OF A 
PLANNING OBLIGATION UNDER SECTION 106 OF THE 
TOWN AND COUNTY PLANNING ACT 1990:

18/00762/MNR – HEATH

304A CAERPHILLY ROAD, BIRCHGROVE, CARDIFF
Proposed demolition of 304A Caerphilly Road and erection of new development to 
form A3 commercial unit to ground floor with 5 no flats over.

8 :   APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY DELEGATED POWERS - MAY 2018 

The Committee noted the applications decided by delegated powers for May 2018.

9 :   URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY) 

None



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

10 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 11 JULY 2018 

The meeting terminated at Time Not Specified



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE DATE: 11/07/2018 
 
APPLICATION No. 18/00735/MJR APPLICATION DATE:  29/03/2018 
 
ED:   BUTETOWN 
 
APP: TYPE:  Full Planning Permission 
 
APPLICANT:   Rightacres Property Company Ltd 
LOCATION:  BRAINS BREWERY, CRAWSHAY STREET, BUTETOWN,  
   CARDIFF, CF10 5DS 
PROPOSAL:  FULL PLANNING APPLICATION FOR AN OFFICE BUILDING 
   PROVIDING BUSINESS (USE CLASS B1) FLOORSPACE,  
   WITH ANCILLARY GYM (USE CLASS D2), MARKETPLACE / 
   RETAIL (USE CLASS A1) AND FOOD AND DRINK (USE  
   CLASS A3) USES; A MULTI-STOREY CAR PARK (SUI  
   GENERIS) WITH ANCILLARY RETAIL (USE CLASS A1); AND 
   PUBLIC REALM, ACCESS, DRAINAGE AND OTHER  
   INFRASTRUCTURE WORKS REQUIRED FOR THE   
   DELIVERY OF CENTRAL QUAY (PHASE 1)    
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 RECOMMENDATION 1 :  That planning permission be GRANTED subject to 

the following conditions :  
 
1. C01 Statutory Time Limit 
 
2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans: 
 

Drawing Reference    Drawing Title 
0305-RIO-00-00-DR-A-90010 Rev 1  Site Location Plan 
0305-RIO-00-00-DR-A-90011 Rev 1  Existing Site Plan 
0305-RIO-00-00-DR-A-90012 Rev 4  Proposed Site Plan 
0305-RIO-00-00-DR-A-90100 Rev 2  Topographical Site Survey 
0305-RIO-00-XX-DR-A-90200 Rev 1  Existing Site Sections 1 
0305-RIO-00-XX-DR-A-90205 Rev 3  Proposed Site Sections 01 
0305-RIO-00-XX-DR-A-90207 Rev 3  Proposed Site Sections 03 
0305-RIO-00-XX-DR-A-90208 Rev 3  Proposed Site Sections 04 
0305-RIO-00-XX-DR-A-90209 Rev 3  Proposed Site Sections 05 
0305-RIO-00-XX-DR-A-90210 Rev 3  Proposed Site Sections 06 
0305-RIO-00-XX-DR-A-90211 Rev 3  Proposed Site Sections 07 
 
Office Floor Plans 
0305-RIO-01-00-DR-A-01000 Rev 2  Level 00 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-01-DR-A-01001 Rev 2  Level 01 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-02-DR-A-01002 Rev 2  Level 02 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-03-DR-A-01003 Rev 2  Level 03 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-04-DR-A-01004 Rev 2  Level 04 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-05-DR-A-01005 Rev 2  Level 05 Plan 

1

Agenda Item 5a



0305-RIO-01-06-DR-A-01006 Rev 2 Level 06 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-07-DR-A-01007 Rev 2  Level 07 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-08-DR-A-01008 Rev 2  Level 08 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-09-DR-A-01009 Rev 2  Level 09 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-10-DR-A-01010 Rev 2  Level 10 Plan 
0305-RIO-01-11-DR-A-01011 Rev 4 Level 11 Roof Plan 
 
Office Elevations & Sections 
0305-RIO-01-00-XX-A-02001 Rev 2  North Elevation 
0305-RIO-01-00-XX-A-02002 Rev 2  West Elevation 
0305-RIO-01-00-XX-A-02003 Rev 2  South Elevation 
0305-RIO-01-00-XX-A-02004 Rev 2  East Elevation 
0305-RIO-01-00-XX-A-02020 Rev 1  North True Elevations 
0305-RIO-01-00-XX-A-02021 Rev 1  Market Hall True Elevations 
0305-RIO-01-XX-DR-A-03000 Rev 1  Section A-A 
0305-RIO-01-XX-DR-A-03001 Rev 1  Section B-B 
0305-RIO-01-XX-DR-A-03002 Rev 1  Section C-C 
0305-RIO-01-XX-DR-A-03003 Rev 1  Section D-D and E-E 
0305-RIO-01-XX-DR-A-03004 Rev 1  Section F-F and G-G 
 
MSCP Floor Plans 
0305-RIO-02-00-DR-A-01015 Rev 7  Level 00 Plan 
0305-RIO-02-01-DR-A-01016 Rev 5  Level 01 Plan 
0305-RIO-02-02-DR-A-01017 Rev 5  Level 02 Plan 
0305-RIO-02-03-DR-A-01018 Rev 5  Level 03 Plan 
0305-RIO-02-04-DR-A-01019 Rev 5  Level 04 Plan 
0305-RIO-02-05-DR-A-01020 Rev 5  Level 05 Plan 
0305-RIO-02-06-DR-A-01021 Rev 5  Level 06 Plan 
0305-RIO-02-07-DR-A-01022 Rev 2  Level 07 Plan / Roof 
 
MSCP Elevations & Sections 
0305-RIO-02-00-DR-A-02010 Rev 5  South and East Elevations 
0305-RIO-02-00-DR-A-02011 Rev 5  North and West Elevations 
0305-RIO-02-XX-DR-A-03010 Rev 5  Sections A-A to D-D 
 
Public Realm Plans 
488-CLA-01-XX-DR-L-1000 Rev 6  Public Realm Masterplan 
488-CLA-01-XX-DR-L-1001 Rev 5  Public Realm North 
488-CLA-01-XX-DR-L-1002 Rev 5  Public Realm South 
488-CLA-01-XX-DR-L-5000 Rev 4  Planting Plan 
488-CLA-01-XX-DR-L-5010 Rev 3  Tree Removals Plan 
488-CLA-01-XX-GR-L-PL14 Rev 6  Illustrative Public Realm Site 

Plan 
 
Highway Plan 
W162718_A14 Rev H Phase One  Highways General   

     Arrangements Plan 
 
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 

2



 
3. Material Samples: Excluding demolition, site preparation and ground 

works (foundations and basement structures to ground floor slab) no 
other development shall take place until samples of the external finishing 
materials have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  

 Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory finished appearance to the 
development. 

 
4. Architectural Details: Excluding demolition, site preparation and ground 

works (foundations and basement structures to ground floor slab) no 
other development shall take place until architectural details of all 
building facades have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and the development shall not be brought into 
use until the approved scheme is implemented.  

 Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory finished appearance to the 
development. 

 
5. Drainage Plan: No development shall take place until comprehensive 

proposals showing how foul and surface water flows from the site have 
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall include the incorporation of a grease trap for that part of 
the foul water drainage system serving proposed café/ restaurant uses. 
The works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details.  

 Reason: To ensure an orderly form of development. 
 
6. Hydraulic Modelling Assessment: No development shall commence until 

a Hydraulic Modelling Assessment has been undertaken to assess the 
potable water supply to serve the wider Central Quay development. The 
solutions and overall potable water strategy shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

 Reason: To protect the existing community and to ensure the site can be 
served with an adequate water supply. 

 
7. The proposed car parking and manoeuvring areas shall be laid out in 

accordance with the approved details before the development is brought 
into beneficial use and be thereafter maintained and retained at all times 
for those purposes in association with the development. 

 Reason: to make provision for the parking of vehicles clear of the roads 
so as not to prejudice the safety, convenience and free flow of traffic. 

 
8. No development shall take place until details of the junction between the 

proposed access road and the highway have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Those details shall 
be implemented prior to the development being put into beneficial use. 

 Reason: To ensure that the use of the proposed development does not 
interfere with the safety and free flow of traffic passing along the highway 

3



abutting the site. 
 
9. Closure of Existing Access: The existing access to Crawshay Street 

shall not be used and shall be permanently closed before the 
development is brought into beneficial use.  

 Reason: To ensure that the use of the proposed development does not 
interfere with the safety and free flow of traffic passing along the highway 
abutting the site. 

 
10. No development shall take place until details showing the provision of 

cycle parking spaces have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The approved details shall be implemented 
prior to the development being put into beneficial use. Thereafter the 
cycle parking spaces shall be maintained and shall not be used for any 
other purpose.  

 Reason: To ensure that adequate provision is made for the secure 
parking of cycles.  

 
11. No development shall take place until detailed plans showing the 

position and form of construction of all roads and footpaths within the 
site and the method of disposal of all surface water drainage therefrom 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be brought into beneficial use until 
the roads, paths and all surface water drainage works have been 
constructed and completed (except for the final surfacing) in accordance 
with the approved plans and details.        

 Reason: To ensure an orderly form of development and to make 
provision for the satisfactory access to the development by future 
occupants. 

 
12. Highway Works: Prior to commencement of development a scheme of 

environmental highway improvements, broadly in accordance with the 
submitted Vectos plan W162718_A14 rev. H, and programme for its 
implementation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include, but not be limited to, 
surfacing, kerbs, edging, drainage, lining and signing, telematics and 
communications infrastructure, and the renewal/improvement of street 
lighting, street trees and street furniture. Unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the LPA the agreed scheme is to be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details prior to beneficial occupation of 
the development.  

 Reason: To ensure the improvement of the adjacent public highway to 
facilitate safe and orderly access/egress to the proposed development. 

 
13. Travel Plan: No part of the development hereby permitted shall be 

occupied until a Travel Plan has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the LPA. The Travel Plan shall set out proposals and targets, 
together with a timetable to limit or reduce the number of single 
occupancy car journeys to the site, and to promote travel by sustainable 
modes. The Travel Plan shall be implemented in accordance with the 

4



timetable set out in the plan, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
LPA. Reports demonstrating progress in promoting the sustainable 
transport measures detailed in the Travel Plan shall be submitted 
annually to the LPA, commencing from the first anniversary of beneficial 
occupation of the development.  

 Reason: To promote sustainable transport. 
 
14. Construction Environmental Management Plan: Prior to commencement 

of development a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority to include details of construction traffic routes, details of the 
site/ compound, site hoardings, site access/ egress, wheel washing and 
road cleansing facilities, storage of plant and materials, parking of 
contractors vehicles, the reinstatement of any part of the public highway 
affected by construction works, a noise & vibration control plan, details 
of how dust and dirt emissions will be controlled, details of how pollution 
risks to controlled waters will be managed during the works, and a 
scheme for recycling/ disposing of waste resulting from construction 
works. The construction of the development shall be managed strictly in 
accordance with the scheme so approved.  

 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and public amenity, and to 
prevent pollution of the water environment. 

 
15. Ecological Construction Method Statement: Prior to commencement of 

development an Ecological Construction Method Statement (ECMS) 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
to include details of mitigation measures to protect the River Taff Site of 
Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) including:  
• Establishment of an Ecological Protection Zone (EPZ) extending 

at least 10 metres from the River Taff (not including the drainage 
works). The EPZ to be protected by exclusion fencing and 
signage to prevent activities such as incursion by vehicles or 
personnel, mechanical excavation, fires and stockpiling of 
materials.  

• Details of a lighting scheme to reduce light spillage from 
construction temporary lighting on to the SINC 

• Drainage working area on the River Taff embankment to be kept 
to a minimum and appropriate pollution control measures 
employed in accordance with the relevant Pollution Prevention 
Guidelines.   

 The construction of the development shall be managed strictly in 
accordance with the scheme so approved.  

 Reason:  In the interests of nature conservation, and to prevent 
pollution of the water environment. 

 
16. Plant Noise: The rating level of the noise emitted from fixed plant and 

equipment on the site shall not exceed the existing background noise 
level at any time by more than 5dB(A) at any residential property when 
measured and corrected in accordance with BS 4142: 1997 (or any 
British Standard amending or superseding that standard).  

5



 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of future occupiers of the 
development and occupiers of other premises in the vicinity are 
protected. 

 
17. No equipment, plant or materials shall be brought onto the site for the 

purpose of development until full details of both hard and soft landscape 
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  These details shall include proposed finished 
levels, earthworks, hard surfacing materials, proposed and existing 
services above and below ground level, planting plans (including 
schedules of plant species, sizes, numbers or densities, and in the case 
of trees, planting, staking, mulching, protection, soil protection and after 
care methods) and an implementation programme.  The details shall be 
consistent with other plans submitted in support of the application and 
the landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
design and implementation programme. 

 Reason : To enable the Local Planning Authority, to determine that the 
proposals will maintain and improve the amenity of the area, and to 
monitor compliance.  

 
18. Any trees, plants, or hedgerows which within a period of five years from 

the completion of the development die, are removed, become seriously 
damaged or diseased, or become (in the opinion of the Local Planning 
Authority) otherwise defective, shall be replaced in the current planting 
season or the first two months of the next planting season, whichever is 
the sooner, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to 
any variation. 

 Reason : To maintain and improve the amenity of the area. 
 
19. Ground Gas Protection: The proposed details of appropriate gas 

protection measures to ensure the safe and inoffensive dispersal or 
management of gases and to prevent lateral migration of gases into or 
from land surrounding the application site shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing to the LPA.  If no protection measures are required 
than no further actions will be required. All required gas protection 
measures shall be installed and appropriately verified before occupation 
of any part of the development which has been permitted and the 
approved protection measures shall be retained and maintained until 
such time as the Local Planning Authority agrees in writing that the 
measures are no longer required.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
20. Identification of Unsuspected Contamination: In the event that 

contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in 
writing within 2 days to the Local Planning Authority, all associated 
works must stop, and no further development shall take place unless 
otherwise agreed in writing until a scheme to deal with the contamination 
found has been approved.  An investigation and risk assessment must 

6



be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation 
scheme and verification plan must be prepared and submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following 
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
a verification report must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The timescale for the above actions shall be 
agreed with the LPA within 2 weeks of the discovery of any unsuspected 
contamination.  

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
21. Importation of Aggregates: Any aggregate  (other than virgin quarry 

stone) or recycled aggregate material to be imported shall be assessed 
for chemical or other potential contaminants in accordance with a 
scheme of investigation which shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance of its importation. 
Only material approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be 
imported. All measures specified in the approved scheme shall be 
undertaken in accordance with Pollution Control’s Imported Materials 
Guidance Notes. Subject to approval of the above, sampling of the 
material received at the development site to verify that the imported soil 
is free from contamination shall be undertaken in accordance with a 
scheme and timescale to be agreed in writing by the LPA.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan.  

 
22. Importation of Topsoil: Any topsoil [natural  or manufactured],or subsoil, 

to be imported shall be assessed for chemical or other potential 
contaminants in accordance with a scheme of investigation to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
advance of its importation. Only material approved by the Local Planning 
Authority shall be imported. All measures specified in the approved 
scheme shall be undertaken in accordance with the relevant Code of 
Practice and Guidance Notes. Subject to approval of the above, 
verification sampling of the material received at the development site is 
required to verify that the imported soil is free from contamination and 
shall be undertaken in accordance with a scheme agreed with in writing 
by the LPA.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
23. Archaeology: No development shall take place until a written scheme of 

historic environment mitigation has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter the 
programme of work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
scheme.  

7



 Reason: To identify and record any features of archaeological interest 
discovered during the works, in order to mitigate the impact of the works 
on the archaeological resource. 

 
24. Inclusive access: Prior to commencement of the public realm works a 

detailed access strategy setting out the measures proposed to ensure 
inclusive access to and from the MSCP building for all groups shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The measures shall 
include signage and wayfinding where appropriate, and the design and 
siting of on-street furniture, including lighting. The measures shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to beneficial 
use of the MSCP building.  

 Reason: To ensure inclusive access in accordance with LDP Policy 
KP5. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 2:  To protect the amenities of occupiers of other 

premises in the vicinity attention is drawn to the provisions of Section 60 of the 
Control of Pollution Act 1974 in relation to the control of noise from demolition 
and construction activities. Further to this the applicant is advised that no noise 
audible outside the site boundary adjacent to the curtilage of residential 
property shall be created by construction activities in respect of the 
implementation of this consent outside the hours of 0800-1800 hours Mondays 
to Fridays and 0800 - 1300 hours on Saturdays or at any time on Sunday or 
public holidays. The applicant is also advised to seek approval for any 
proposed piling operations. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 3: The applicant is advised that as a consequence of 

changes associated with the proposed development a number of existing 
Traffic Regulation Orders will need to be revoked or amended, or new TROs 
implemented to manage the impact of the proposed development. The cost of 
the above agreements and Orders, including the cost of implementation of any 
associated works, and/or other costs related to the provision of the proposed 
development or discharge of any conditions are to be met by the applicant. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 4: The highway works conditions and any other works to 

existing or proposed adopted public highway are to be subject to an agreement 
under Section 38 and/or Section 278 Highways Act 1980 between the 
developer and the Local Highway Authority.  

 
 RECOMMENDATION 5: Prior to commencement of development any areas of 

adopted public highway that are required to facilitate the proposed 
development will need to have been Stopped-up by way of Order(s) under 
S247 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 6:  The contamination assessments and the affects of 

unstable land are considered on the basis of the best information available to 
the Planning Authority and are not necessarily exhaustive.  The Authority 
takes due diligence when assessing these impacts, however you are minded 
that the responsibility for 
(i) determining the extent and effects of such constraints; 

8



(ii) ensuring that any imported materials (including, topsoils, subsoils, 
aggregates and recycled or manufactured aggregates/ soils) are 
chemically suitable for the proposed end use.  Under no circumstances 
should controlled waste be imported. It is an offence under Section 33 of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to deposit controlled waste on a 
site which does not benefit from an appropriate waste management 
license.  The following must not be imported to a development site: 
• Unprocessed / unsorted demolition wastes. 
• Any materials originating from a site confirmed as being 

contaminated or potentially contaminated by chemical or radioactive 
substances. 

• Japanese Knotweed stems, leaves and rhizome infested soils.  In 
addition to section 33 above, it is also an offence under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 to spread this invasive weed; and  

(iii) the safe development and secure occupancy of the site rests with the 
developer.  

 Proposals for areas of possible land instability should take due account of the 
physical and chemical constraints and may include action on land reclamation 
or other remedial action to enable beneficial use of unstable land. The Local 
Planning Authority has determined the application on the basis of the 
information available to it, but this does not mean that the land can be 
considered free from contamination 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 7: To ensure the protection of Network Rail’s adjoining 

land attention is drawn to Network Rail’s consultation responses dated 1.5.18. 
 
 RECOMMENDATION 8: The applicant is advised that section 5.2.8 of Planning 

Policy Wales states that the planning system has an important part to play in 
meeting biodiversity objectives by promoting approaches to development 
which create new opportunities to enhance biodiversity.  This is further 
reflected in LDP policies such as EN7. In terms of specific enhancement 
features, it is recommended that nesting or roosting opportunities for birds and 
bats should be incorporated into new build. An appropriate level of 
enhancement provision across this phase of the development would be: 5 x bat 
boxes for crevice-dwelling bats; 5 x Swift nest boxes; 2 x double House Martin 
cups; 2 x House Sparrow terraces. The applicant’s ecologist can advise on the 
make and model and suitable positioning of these features.   

 
1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.1 The application seeks detailed planning permission for Phase 1 of the Central 

Quay development on land to the south of Cardiff Central Railway Station. The 
proposals comprise 3 main elements: a mixed use office building, a multi-storey 
car park (MSCP), and associated public realm/ access works. 
 

1.2 An amended ground floor plan has been received introducing an additional 
ground floor active use to the MSCP.  
 

1.3 The DAS has been amended to reinforce the importance of the pedestrian/ 
cyclist route linking the new Station Square to Penarth Road that runs 

9



immediately to the north of the MSCP (see DAS Part 3: Connectivity, 
Movement, and Concept Diagram pages, and Part 5: Key Views 2 page which 
shows a view towards the proposed Station Square from the Dumballs Road/ 
Callaghan Square junction).  
 

1.4 The Central Quay Masterplan has been amended to show a realigned 
east-west strategic cycle route and a cycle hub with capacity for up to 1,000 
cycles as part of Network Rail’s expansion and improvements to Central 
Station (see p. 54 of Central Quay Masterplan) 
 

1.5 Mixed use office building An 11 storey 25,735sqm building to be known as The 
Ledger. The use is primarily office with a number of ancillary uses including an 
open public ground floor flexible market place intended for smaller, 
independent retailers and ground floor café open to the public, first floor staff 
café, gym and external terrace, and 9th floor client lounge and external terrace. 
The building is 50.5m in height (11 storeys plus rooftop plant room). 
 

1.6 The building is located at the centre of the Phase 1 site, aligned with the main 
north-south boulevard and fronting the proposed station Square to the north. 
Approximately 50% of the ground floor is a large, open, highly permeable 
flexible space  and is designed to function as a market place accommodating a 
mix of multi-vendor food hall stalls and cafes (A1/A3 uses) intended for office 
users and members of the public. Centrally located within this space is the main 
entrance to the office core giving access to main office reception on the 9th floor 
of the building. The market place is designed to spill out on to Station Square to 
the north and Market Square to the west. 
 

1.7 The office building is fan-shaped in plan comprising three differently expressed 
stepped masses with the main frontage orientated towards the public square 
and railway station entrance to the north. Materials are anodised aluminium 
rainscreen cladding for the office floors, enclosed within a strongly articulated 
dark frame, all sitting above a differentiated triple height plinth with active 
frontages designed to interact on the north and west sides with the proposed 
public squares. 

 
1.8 A minimum of 52 secure cycle spaces with lockers and showers for office 

workers is also provided at ground floor. 
 

1.9 Multi-storey car park (MSCP) A 7 storey 695 space multi storey car park 
(MSCP) is proposed to the south-east of the office building.  
 

1.10 The ground floor of the MSCP will operate as a drop-off and pick-up zone for 
the Station and will provide a dedicated layby (8 vehicles) and short-term car 
parking spaces (13 spaces of which 5 will be accessible). General parking for 
members of the public (primarily rail users) and the new office building (50 
dedicated spaces) will be directed to the upper floors. Provision will also be 
made for electric vehicle parking spaces.  
 

1.11 Existing car parking for Central Station totals 440 spaces (110 on the Fish Jetty 
car park to the north, 284 on the main car park to the south, and 46 on the 

10



Saunders Road car park). 330 spaces will be lost as a result of the Central 
Quay development (284 spaces) and the Interchange development on Central 
Square (46 spaces). 645 of the MSCP 695 spaces will be for public use 
(primarily rail users) which represents an increase in overall parking provision 
for the Station of 315 spaces (a 70% increase in public parking provision). 
 

1.12 30 cycle parking spaces will be provided in the MSCP for general public use. 
 
1.13 The MSCP will be controlled by Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) 

technology, meaning that the car park can operate without tickets or barrier 
control. This will allow for potentially more efficient movement of traffic in to and 
out of the car park. The car park pricing strategy will be similar to the existing 
NR car park, however it will be calculated to favour rail users over general city 
centre visitors. 
 

1.14 Also located on the ground floor is a 350 sq m retail unit on the SE corner 
fronting Penarth Road and the new access road, and a smaller retail unit at the 
NE corner fronting the new pedestrian/ cyclist access route from Penarth Road 
to the new public square in front of the station. 
 

1.15 The building is essentially a large box that relies on its ground floor uses and 
the quality of its façade treatment to sit comfortably on such a prominent part of 
the site. Active frontages are included on the ground floor at the two Penarth 
Road corners of the building, and there is potential for a ticketing hall  for 
onward travel at the northernmost corner facing the station entrance and 
potential future metro stop. The ground floor pick-up and taxi rank will operate 
closely with the station and potential Metro and has the capacity to act as a vital 
element of an integrated transport system. 
 

1.16 The proposed façade treatment is a lightweight geometrically modelled and 
highly permeable aluminium cladding that relies on light and shade to create a 
visually exciting skin, designed to present a more open aspect to Penarth Road 
advertising the presence of the car park, and a more closed aspect on the 
northern and southern facades in particular, thus reducing the visual impact of 
the parked cars on the public realm. As with the office building a highly 
differentiated and more solid plinth grounds the building, and provides a robust 
façade to cope with the levels of use. 
 

1.17 The exact choice of material and the detailed design of the façade are still being 
researched by the architects. Material samples and architectural detailing 
conditions are attached to the permission to control this aspect of the 
development in order to ensure a high quality building. 
 

1.18 Taxi and Coaches The MSCP incorporates a dedicated ground floor taxi 
pick-up zone with capacity for 23 taxis accessed from the NW corner of the 
building. This corner of the MSCP is clearly visible from the rear entrance of the 
station and is at a distance of about 85m. Taxi drop-off is from a dedicated layby 
on the northern side of the access road close to the northern Penarth Road 
junction and at a distance (at its closest point) of about 65m from the station 
entrance.  

11



 
1.19 Three coach bays are located on the northern side of the access road between 

the office building and the MSCP. The intention is that these spaces will be 
used by National Express and by the rail replacement bus service as and when 
required. 

 
1.20 Public Realm The application delivers a significant area of public realm around 

and adjacent to the two buildings, including a new public square directly to the 
south of the Station entrance, a new access at the southern end of the site from 
Penarth Road and egress at the northern end, the northern end of the main 
north-south boulevard serving the wider site, and an area of parking and 
associated public realm for the residents of Crawshay Street. 
 

1.21 Connecting routes in and out of the public square are paved and tree-lined with 
two paved crossovers allowing pedestrians safe access. The main carriageway 
to the west of the office building has defined routes for service vehicles, cyclists 
and pedestrians, and is designed to accommodate a potential future Metro 
route. Surface treatments will define clear priorities for all users. 

 
1.22 The application also includes an area of land that extends to the west of the 

application site as far as the River Taff. This part of the application site is 
included because of below ground drainage works only. 
 

1.23 The public realm proposals are mainly hard landscaping incorporating some 
street furniture, tree planting (35 new trees), and elements of soft landscaping, 
and will set the benchmark for the later phases of the scheme. 
 

1.24 Access Vehicular access is from a new signalised junction on Penarth Road. 
Crawshay Street will be stopped up and a new junction created to provide 
access to the MSCP and the coach and taxi pick up/ drop-off area. Cars from 
the MSCP will exit the site from the same signalised junction. Coaches and 
taxis (and service vehicles) will exit the site to the north across what is currently 
the NR car park on to the northern arm of Penarth Road. 
 

1.25 Pedestrian and cyclist access to the application site will be either via the new 
taxi/ coach egress, which gives direct access from the northern end of Penarth 
Road to the new station square, or from a dedicated pedestrian cyclist route 
linking the new station square to Penarth Road alongside the northern edge of 
the MSCP. The latter route provides a more direct and legible route to/ from the 
station from Dumballs Road and the south side of Callaghan Square. 
 

1.26 Crawshay Street will be redesigned to form a new parking court for existing 
residents accessed by a new priority T-junction with the Phase One access 
road. Fourteen spaces will be provided (2 spaces per dwelling) and the parking 
court and surrounding footway will be treated as a shared space. Refuse 
collection will be from the new dedicated loading bay to the north of the 
Crawshay Street access. 
 

1.27 Highway enabling works: Enabling highway works include: 

12



• Reducing the Penarth Road carriageway to one running lane eastbound 
and one running lane westbound between Dumballs Road and the River 
Taff bridge, and the introduction of minimum 1.5m wide on-road mandatory 
cycleways on each carriageway.  

• Introducing a dedicated right-turn lane for Penarth Road westbound traffic 
accessing the Phase 1 development.  

• Removal of one of the southbound approach lanes on the Penarth Road 
(north) arm which allows for the introduction of a cycle lane adjoining the 
advanced stop line 

 
1.28 The highway enabling works are conditioned and will be delivered as part of the 

phase 1 works under a Section 278 agreement.   
 

1.29 Central Quay Masterplan The Central Quay site forms part of the ‘Central 
Enterprise Zone and Regional Transport Hub’ strategic site that is allocated 
under policy KP2A of Cardiff’s LDP, and the application is accompanied by a 
supporting masterplan for the wider Central Quay area. The masterplan 
approach is required by the LDP for strategic sites. It puts the application 
proposals into context and seeks to ensure a comprehensive development and 
design approach.  
 

1.30 The masterplan is not however an adopted policy document and is not a formal 
part of the planning application. It sets out the vision for the area and 
establishes guiding principles for the redevelopment of the wider area. It is 
therefore a supporting document intended to deliver the vision in accordance 
with the LDP yet retain sufficient flexibility to respond to changing demands and 
circumstances over the development’s lifetime. Key aspects of the 
redevelopment of this strategic site are: 
• Deliver a mixed use development including employment, residential, retail, 

leisure, educational, and multi-storey car park uses 
• Integrate transport modes to the south side of the station, including taxis, 

cars, coaches, and the metro 
• Maximise the potential of the waterfront setting 
• Create new public open spaces including around the historic brewery 

building and chimney. These buildings are not listed but are well-loved 
structures and are of significant heritage interest.  

• Provision of a significant cycle hub facility to the south side of the Station as 
part of the Central Station improvement/ expansion works. 

 
1.31 Accordingly the masterplan seeks to deliver up to 110,000sqm of office/ 

commercial floor space, up to 600 residential units, a 200 bed hotel, high quality 
public realm including a new public square to the south of the station and a new 
destination public square fronting the river, up to 770 car parking spaces (695 in 
the phase 1 MSCP), a new campus for Cardiff Metropolitan University, and 
provision for the delivery of a new metro system (see below).  
 

1.32 The main access to the wider Central Quay site will be from a new junction at 
close to the Penarth Road bridge giving access to a north-south boulevard 
running the full length of the site. The boulevard will be designed to 
accommodate the Metro. 

13



 
1.33 The retained brewery building and chimney will form the centrepiece for the 

Central Quay development. The building will form a highly visible backdrop to 
the main Central Quay public square which fronts the river. The retained 
chimney will be the focal point of  a new secondary public square (Market 
Square) which lies to the west of the new office building and wraps around the 
brewery building. The brewery building will be converted as part of a later 
phase and is likely to comprise a Brains visitor centre and craft brewery, and 
other potential A1/ A3 uses comprise.  

 
1.34 The masterplan includes a new pedestrian and cyclist bridge over the River 

Taff linking the Taff Trail (and Grangetown/ Riverside) directly to the Central 
Quay development, and an east-west strategic cycle route from the Taff Trail 
crossing the new development to Penarth Road.  
 

1.35 The masterplan also illustrates the potential for relocating the Cardiff Waterbus 
stop from Taffs Mead Embankment to the east side of the river adjacent to the 
new Central Quay waterfront square, thus further integrating the city’s transport 
infrastructure. 
 

1.36 The Metro is a new integrated transport system proposed by Welsh 
Government. The aim is to provide faster, more frequent and joined-up services 
for Cardiff and the region. Details are not yet known but it is likely to be a 
combination of heavy rail, light rail and buses. The design of Phase 1 has 
future-proofed a potential metro link through the site running on the main north 
south boulevard, with the potential for a stop outside the rear entrance of 
Central Station. 
 

1.37 Environmental screening opinion Agreement was reached with the applicant at 
an early stage that the wider development had the potential for significant 
environmental effects due to the scale and nature of the proposals. The 
application for phase 1 of the Central Quay redevelopment is therefore 
considered to be EIA development and is accompanied by an Environmental 
Statement (ES).  
 

1.38 The ES considers the likely significant environmental effects arising during the 
construction and operation of the scheme, and the potential cumulative effects 
that may arise when considered with the wider Central Quay masterplan and 
other relevant nearby development proposals (in particular the regeneration of 
Central Square). 
 

1.39 Environmental scoping opinion An EIA Scoping Report was received in 
November 2017. Consultation responses were received from Network Rail 
(NR), Natural Resources Wales (NRW), DCWW, GGAT, Welsh Government 
CADW, Welsh Government Transport Division, and from the following Council 
Service Areas: Traffic & Transportation, Pollution Control (Air & Noise), 
Pollution Control (Contaminated Land), and Ecology.  

 
1.40 A formal scoping opinion was issued on 22.2.18. The proposed EIA scope was 

considered acceptable, subject to the following: 

14



• An understanding that the masterplan site will generate an additional 75 
parking spaces over and above the spaces in the MSCP. Given the 
potential scale of future development in later phases, the need for flexibility, 
and Network Rail’s plans for significant expansion of Cardiff Central Station, 
the cumulative impact assessment should include for a scenario with 
increased parking numbers on the masterplan site to allow for additional 
demand in the future. Scenario numbers to be agreed with the LPA. 

• Full consideration of the implications of the Metro proposals as far as they 
are available at the time of assessment, and full consultation with the Welsh 
Government as the promoting authority. 

• Inclusion of a plan showing the boundary of the masterplan site. 
• The following bodies to be consulted on the Transport Assessment and, 

where applicable, on the Travel Plan Framework: Welsh Government (in 
relation to Metro plans), Network Rail and Arriva Trains Wales (in relation to 
future plans, parking numbers and access, provision of replacement rail 
buses, and event days management). 

• A Habitats Regulations Assessment to be undertaken by the LPA to assess 
the impact of the proposals on the Severn Estuary Ramsar/SAC/SPA via 
Cardiff Bay. 

The scoping opinion is provided without prejudice and does not preclude 
Cardiff Council from requesting additional information, in accordance with 
Regulation 22 of the EIA Regulations (Wales) 2016, should the need arise. 

 
1.41 The following supporting information is forms part of the planning application: 

• Pre-application consultation report 
• Design and Access Statement (incl. Wind Study, Overshadowing Analysis, 

& Energy Strategy) 
• Planning Statement 
• Central Quay Masterplan 
• Environmental Statement: Vol 1 Non-Technical Summary 
• Environmental Statement: Vol 2 Technical Assessments 
• Environmental Statement: Vol 3 Appendices & Figures 
• Transport Assessment (ES Appendix D1) 
• Interim Travel Plan (ES Appendix D2) 
• Ecological Appraisal (ES Appendix E1) 
• Arboricultural Technical Note 
• Ground Conditions Desk Study Report (ES Appendix F1) 
• Flood Consequences Assessment(ES Appendix G1) 
• Drainage Strategy (ES Appendix G2) 
• Noise Planning Assessment Report (ES Appendix I3) 
• Accurate Visual Representations (ES Appendix J4) 
• Heritage Assessment (ES Chapter K and associated appendices) 
• Health Impact Assessment (ES Chapter M and associated appendices) 
• Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment 
• Air Quality Assessment (ES Chapter H and associated appendices) 

 
 
 
 

15



2. DESCRIPTION OF SITE 
 
2.1 The Central Quay Masterplan area as a whole extends to 6.3 hectares and is 

located to the south of Cardiff Central Railway Station and north of Penarth 
Road. It is brownfield land that comprises the existing Brains Brewery, Network 
Rail Car Park and Sytner BMW car showrooms, and is bound by Cardiff Central 
Train Station to the north; Penarth Road and a range of commercial buildings to 
the south; the River Taff to the west beyond which lies residential areas in 
Riverside; and Penarth Road and the Network Rail Car Park to the north and 
east beyond which is the commercial development located around Callaghan 
Square. 
 

2.2 The application under consideration is for Phase 1 of the development which is 
located in the eastern part of the Masterplan area, accessed from Penarth 
Road. The Phase 1 development site measures 2.02 ha, located on part of the 
NR car park site, and part of the Brains Brewery site. 
 

2.3 The site is currently occupied by various buildings and infrastructure associated 
with brewery operations. The demolition of those buildings required for the 
delivery of Phase 1 of Central Quay has been subject to a separate prior 
notification of demolition application, consented on 6 February 2018 (planning 
ref. 17/03049/MJR). 
 

2.4 The application site is located in a highly central position within Cardiff City 
Centre, with the Grade II listed main railway station to the immediate north and 
the central shopping area to the north of the station. It is therefore in close 
proximity to a range of shops, services and facilities. 
 

2.5 The surrounding uses are predominantly transport, office or 
employment-related uses, and some terraced housing on Crawshay Street and 
neighbouring streets to the south, accessed from Penarth Road. 
 

2.6 The site is not located within a Conservation Area, nor does it contain any 
designated or non-designated heritage assets. The St Mary Street 
Conservation Area, which contains numerous listed and locally listed buildings, 
is approximately 250m to the north of the site. The Grade II listed Central 
Station lies immediately to the north of the site. 
 

2.7 The non-statutory River Taff Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) 
forms the western boundary of the wider Central Quay site. 
 

2.8 The site is located close to the Cardiff City Centre AQMA, which encompasses 
the areas surrounding Westgate Street and St Mary’s Street and passes close 
to the boundary of the proposed development site. The Cardiff City Centre 
AQMA (formerly called St Mary’s Street AQMA) was initially declared in 2002 
and was extended in 2013 in response to monitored exceedances of the NO2 
air quality objectives in Westgate Street. 
 
 
 

16



Accessibility  
2.9 There are three existing points of access from Penarth Road into the wider site: 

the southernmost junction provides direct access to the BMW car showroom; 
the Crawshay Street junction provides access to both Crawshay Street 
residents and Brains Brewery; and the northernmost junction is the Penarth 
Road/ Dumballs Road signal-controlled junction that provides access to the 
Network Rail car park and Callaghan Square offices. 
 

2.10 Pedestrian access to the site is currently limited to the station car park and the 
rear entrance to Cardiff Central Railway Station. There is no access through the 
site or along the River Taff embankment. 

 
2.11 Given its central location, the site is well connected strategically to the rest of 

Cardiff and the surrounding region. Penarth Road to the south is a high 
frequency bus corridor with around 16 buses per hour during the peak period 
(in both directions). Cardiff Central Railway Station provides frequent rail 
services to local, regional and national destinations. The railway station and 
bus stops are both within walking distance of the site. 
 

2.12 Network Rail plans for improvements to Central Station: In response to a 
projected rise in passenger numbers Network Rail (NR) is in the process of 
preparing a masterplan for the expansion and improvement of the station. NR 
has been in discussions with the Council and the developer over the nature and 
delivery of the upgraded station. 
 

3. PLANNING HISTORY 
 

• 17/03049/MJR Prior approval granted in Feb 2018 for the demolition of the 
existing buildings on this Phase 1 application site.  

• 17/03116/MJR Planning permission granted in Feb 2018 for a temporary car 
park on part of the application site. The proposed temporary car park is to 
serve as a replacement for Network Rail’s existing car parking spaces that 
will be lost during the construction of the current application proposals. 

 
3.1 Pre-application process:  A formal planning pre-application enquiry was 

registered with the Council 0n 27.4.17. The scheme was reviewed by the 
Design Commission for Wales on 28.2.17 and a DCfW workshop was held on 
site on 8.7.17. The developer launched a wider public consultation exercise in 
November 2017.  

 
3.2 Statutory pre-application public consultation was carried out between 21st 

February and 22nd March 2018. Site notices were posted, and adjoining 
landowners and occupiers and the Ward Councillor for Butetown were notified. 
Specialist consultees were consulted in accordance with the Development 
Management (Wales) Procedure Order 2016.  
 

3.3 NRW made comments on the adequacy of the bat surveys, possible adverse 
impact on otters in the Taff, and the potential for groundwater contamination. 
CADW raised no objections. Welsh Water raised no objection to the drainage 
strategy, recommended that a hydraulic modelling assessment be carried out 

17



for the wider Central Quay scheme (not just phase 1), and drew attention to 
sewers crossing the site. No response was received from the ward member. 
 

3.4 Network Rail reiterated concerns made in relation to the ES Scope, in particular 
car parking provision, event management, rail replacement buses, noise & 
vibration, further expansion and major works at the station, and railway safety. 
 

3.5 Only one (positive) response was received from members of the public. 
 
3.6 As a consequence of the consultation process a number of changes have been 

made to the application documents to address concerns raised by NRW, and a 
hydraulic modelling exercise is being undertaken to address DCWW concerns 
on water supply. In response to Network Rail concerns over public parking 
provision for rail users the main change has been the addition of a floor to the 
MSCP to increase parking provision from 580 to 695 spaces. 

 
4. POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
The following national planning policy and guidance is considered to be of 
particular relevance: 
 

4.1 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 2016: Ch. 4 Planning for Sustainability; Ch. 7 
Economic Development; Chapter 8 Transport. 

 
4.2 The following Technical Advice Notes (TANs) are relevant: 

• TAN 12: Design 
• TAN 18: Transport 
• TAN 22: Sustainable Buildings 
• TAN 23: Planning for Economic Development 
 
The following local planning policy and guidance is considered to be of 
particular relevance:  

 
4.3 Cardiff Local Development Plan 2006-2026: 

• KP2 Strategic Sites 
• KP2A Cardiff Central Enterprise Zone and Regional Transport Hub 
• KP4 Masterplanning Approach 
• KP5 Good Quality and Sustainable Design 
• KP6 New Infrastructure 
• KP7 Planning Obligations 
• KP8 Sustainable Transport 
• KP9 Responding to Evidenced Economic Needs 
• KP10 Central & Bay Business Areas 
• KP17 Built Heritage 
• C3 Community Safety/ Creating Safe Environments 
• EN7 Priority Habitats and Species 
• EN9 Conservation of the Historic Environment 
• EN10 Water Sensitive Design 
• EN11 Protection of Water Resources 

18



• EN13 Air, Noise, Light Pollution & Land Contamination 
• R8 Food & Drink Uses 
• T1 Walking & Cycling 
• T4 Regional Transport Hub 
• T5 Managing Transport Impacts 
• T6 Impact on Transport Networks and Services 
• T9 Cardiff City Region ‘Metro’ Network  

 
4.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) is of relevance: 
• Tall Buildings (2017) 
• Access, Circulation and Parking Requirements (2010) 
• Cardiff City Centre Public Realm Manual (2009) 
• Waste Collection and Storage Facilities (2016) 
• Restaurants, Takeaways and other Food and Drink Uses (1996) 
• Premises for Eating, Drinking and Entertainment in the City Centre (2000) 
• Planning Obligations (2017) 

 
5. INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
5.1 Strategic Planning (Land Use policy): The application site falls within the Cardiff 

Central Business District and Cardiff Central Enterprise Zone as defined by the 
Cardiff Local Development Plan Proposals Map. Policy KP2(A): Cardiff Central 
Enterprise Zone and Regional Transport Hub allocates this site for a major 
employment led initiative and Regional Transport Hub, and is one of eight 
Strategic Sites allocated in the LDP  to collectively play a crucial role in 
delivering the Plan Strategy.  
 

5.2 The KP2A Schematic Framework allocates this site for employment and mixed 
uses to be developed in line with the approach outlined in Policy KP4: 
Masterplanning Approach. The application raises no land use policy concerns. 
 

5.3 Transportation:  The Transportation Officer confirms that the application 
submission has been assessed and is considered to be acceptable in principle 
subject to the following comments and conditions:  
 

5.4 The application proposes to provide a mix of development as part of phase one 
of the wider Central Quay re-development, including a new office building; a 
multi storey car park (MSCP) incorporating public drop off/pick up, taxi rank and 
active ground floor units (A1/A3); a 3 bay coach station and layover provision; 
and associated new and improved public realm and highway infrastructure, 
including 2 new junctions on Penarth Road. 
 

5.5 Access to the proposed development will be gained from Penarth Road via a 
new three arm signalised junction east of Crawshay Street, which incorporates 
access to/egress from the MSCP and access to coach/taxi facilities, and 
servicing to the office development. Access to/egress from the existing 
residential properties on Crawshay Street will be taken off the new road layout 

19



via a priority T junction, with the existing Penarth Road/Crawshay Street 
junction being closed to vehicular traffic and reconstructed to form footway. 
 

5.6 The proposed signalised junction on Penarth Road includes push button 
crossings on the north and west arms, picking up on the pedestrian desire line 
to/from Trade Street to the south, along with cycle advanced stop lines, lead-in 
lanes and a dedicated right turn lane into the site. The junction proposals also 
incorporate the closure of Crawshay Street. The associated works to Penarth 
Road will also provide improved, stepped cycle lanes and rationalisation of the 
current running lanes. Typical cross-sections for Penarth Road to the east and 
west of the new junction are shown in the submitted Transport Assessment 
(TA) and are considered to be acceptable subject to detailed design. 
 

5.7 A second, egress only priority T (un-signalised), junction will be formed on 
Penarth Road to the east of the existing Network Rail surface car park, opposite 
West Canal Wharf. This junction will provide egress for coach, taxi and service 
vehicles; while all other traffic, associated with the MSCP will utilise the new 
signalised junction on Penarth Road. 
 

5.8 Provision of the primary and secondary junctions will require works to Penarth 
Road in their respective locations, including new kerblines, surfacing, lining, 
signing and telematics infrastructure etc., the design and delivery of which will 
be subject to condition and a Highways Act S278 agreement between the 
developer and LHA. 

 
5.9 Agreement of the detailed design and delivery of the internal road layout, coach 

and taxi facilities, and associated public realm is also subject to condition and 
will, where it is to be adopted by the Highway Authority, be subject of a 
Highways Act S38 agreement. 
 

5.10 The proposed MSCP will provide 695 parking spaces, over 7 storeys, and 
consists of:- 
• 284 spaces to replace parking lost at Central Station car park; 
• 46 spaces to replace parking lost at Saunders Road car park; 
• 50 spaces for the new office building; 
• 315 spaces of new general public provision to help cater for increased 

demand identified by Network Rail. 
 
5.11 There is reference in the submitted TA to the inclusion within the above of 110 

spaces to replace parking that will be lost at the Fish Jetty car park, in which 
case the additional public parking allocation would amount to a lesser 205 
spaces. However I am not aware of the details or timing of the anticipated loss 
of spaces at the Fish Jetty car park and have not relied on this in my 
consideration of the application. 
 

5.12 In large proportion the proposed MSCP therefore replaces parking that will be 
lost as a result of the Central Quay and Central Square developments (330 
spaces), along with the addition of 50 spaces for the proposed office building. 
The balance of 315 spaces, which also includes 21 spaces dedicated to 

20



pick-up/drop-off and disabled parking provision, will be allocated to public use 
primarily intended for Station users. 
 

5.13 Parking demand at the existing Network Rail surface car parks has been 
identified as close to or at capacity for much of the operational daytime period. 
Analysis of car park use shows that the available car parking is nearly 70% 
occupied at 7am and 7pm, indicating a high demand for parking by rail 
commuters using Cardiff Central. 
 

5.14 Network Rail has plans to expand and improve the facilities at Central Station to 
accommodate the projected increased demand for rail travel and is working 
with the Council, the Developer and Transport for Wales to deliver a 
state-of-the art railway station for Cardiff. 
 

5.15 The EIA Scoping Opinion consultation response from Network Rail identified a 
long term car park capacity need of between 890 spaces (low growth scenario) 
and 1,135 spaces (high growth scenario); a view supported by operators Arriva 
Trains Wales and Great Western Railway.  
 

5.16 Network Rail consequently requested an increased parking provision in the 
MSCP to cater for projected demand of 50%, amounting to an additional 220 
spaces and taking the total to 660 spaces. As a result of Network Rail’s 
concerns the developer agreed to add an additional floor to the MSCP, 
increasing parking provision from an initial 580 spaces to 695 spaces, to cater 
for medium to long-term station use growth. 
 

5.17 Given the Network Rail growth forecast, the introduction of the South Wales 
Metro, and the regeneration of the wider area, including Central Square and the 
provision of an integrated transport hub serving the city and wider region to the 
north of the station, and associated loss of the Great Western Lane MSCP, the 
parking provision for the proposed Central Quay MSCP is considered to be 
acceptable. 
 

5.18 It is also noted that the use of the MSCP by persons parking cars is proposed to 
be managed by automatic number plate recognition (ANPR) technology, 
allowing the car park to operate without the traditional entry delays caused by 
tickets/barrier systems. The use of ANPR technology for ticketing should 
therefore lead to more efficient movement of traffic into/out of the car park and 
eliminate the likelihood of inbound traffic blocking back and impacting on 
Penarth Road. As detailed above parking surveys identify that existing station 
car parks are 70% occupied at 7am and 7pm, indicating that the associated 
traffic largely avoids traditional morning and evening peaks, minimising any 
impact on the adjacent network. 
 

5.19 The submitted Transport Assessment considers the impact of the proposed 
development on the adjacent highway network and reviews the operation of the 
proposed Penarth Road site access and existing adjacent Dumballs 
Road/Tresillian Way junctions. 
 

21



5.20 The analysis identifies that there will be some negative impact on the available 
link and junction capacity adjacent to the site, primarily due to the removal of 
one eastbound and one westbound running lane on Penarth Road, with the 
reallocation of that road space to cycle lanes. The provision of the cycle lanes is 
in-line with Council Policy objectives and the Active Travel Wales Act, 
promoting sustainable travel and achieving the 50:50 travel mode split 
identified in the LDP. 
 

5.21 On balance it is considered that the economic, employment and place-making 
opportunities that Central Quay offers, along with improvements to the 
sustainable transport infrastructure, and the positive impact of emerging Metro 
and Bus Station proposals, outweigh the theoretical impact on traffic along the 
Penarth Road corridor and Dumballs Road junction. 
 

5.22 Conditions are sought (full details below) to secure the new highway junctions, 
pedestrian crossing and public realm; the layout and details of internal site 
road, coach and taxi facilities; the Travel Plan; and associated infrastructure 
improvements and highway network modifications required as a consequence 
of the development. 
 

5.23 In light of the above I would conclude that any objection on parking or traffic 
grounds would be unsustainable and any reason for refusal on this basis would 
not withstand challenge. I therefore have no objection to the application subject 
to the comments above and standard retention of parking, access road details, 
closure of existing access (Crawshay Street), cycle parking, details of roads 
(development), highway works, travel plan, and CEMP conditions. 
 

5.24 Further recommendations: The highway works condition and any other works 
to existing or proposed adopted public highway are to be subject to an 
agreement under Section 38 and/or Section 278 Highways Act 1980 between 
the developer and Local Highway Authority. 
 

5.25 Prior to commencement of that phase of development, any areas of adopted 
public highway that are required to facilitate the proposed development will 
need to have been Stopped-up by way of Order(s) under S247 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 
 

5.26 The applicant is advised that as a consequence of changes associated with the 
proposed development a number of existing Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) 
will need to be revoked or amended, and new TRO implemented. 
 

5.27 The cost of the above agreements and Orders, including the cost of 
implementation of any associated works, and/or other costs related to the 
provision of the proposed development or discharge of any conditions are to be 
met by the applicant. 

 
5.28 Trees and Landscaping: The Council’s Tree Preservation Officer makes the 

following observations:  
 

22



5.29 No trees of significant amenity value will be lost or suffer unacceptable harm as 
a result of development, subject to any that are retained being protected in 
accordance with the submitted EDP report. 
 

5.30 A relatively small area of vegetated soil will be lost. It is unlikely that it will be 
practicable or economically viable to salvage this soil for re-use as part of 
proposed landscaping, but if there is such an intention, a Soil Resource Survey 
and Plan should be prepared in accordance with our Soils and Development 
TGN. 
 

5.31 The extent of hard landscaping vastly exceeds that of soft landscaping. The 
plaza in particular would benefit by having larger areas of soft landscaping, 
rather than vegetation being confined to small islands in a ‘sea’ of pavers. 
Increasing the extent of soft landscaping would be beneficial not only 
aesthetically, but functionally in terms of better supporting the healthy, 
long-term growth of trees and other vegetation, microclimatic amelioration, 
water management, pollution uptake and biodiversity. A doubling in the width of 
the planters for example, would bring considerable benefits in this regard. 
 

5.32 In terms of aesthetics (and pollution absorption in the case of the Magnolia), the 
Officer thinks the tree species selection is good, but has some concerns in 
other regards. The consultation response goes on to list the concerns and 
these have been sent to the agent. 

 
5.33 Highways and Waste Management (Drainage): No comments received. Any 

comments from the Drainage Engineer will be reported to committee as a late 
representation. 

 
5.34 Pollution Control (Noise): The Officer raises significant concerns over the 

adverse impact of construction site noise and vibration on residents of 
Crawshay Street and Penarth Road, and other lesser concerns about the 
impact of road traffic and building services noise. Discussions are taking place 
with the applicant’s noise consultant over how to address the concerns and the 
consultation response will be reported to Committee as a late representation. 

 
5.35 Pollution Control (Air): The Officer has sought additional data and clarification 

over the methodology. The consultation response will be reported to 
Committee as a late representation. 

 
5.36 Pollution Control (Contaminated land): The consultant has undertaken an 

assessment of the site for potential contaminants of concern that could impact 
upon site end users, controlled waters and construction workers. The results of 
the assessment indicated that there are no significant sources of contamination 
present at the site and that there is no unacceptable risk to end users. This is 
based on the phase 1 use of the site being predominately of a commercial 
nature i.e. offices/ car park with commercial units.   
 

5.37 I would agree with the assessment undertaken and no further assessment or 
remedial works will be required in order to ensure that the Phase 1 site is 
developed on suitable for use basis. 

23



 
5.38 The consultants have identified that slightly elevated ground gases have been 

identified in the area of the car park.  The consultants have recommended in 
Section 8.6 of the report that ‘gas protective measures should be incorporated 
within the commercial retail units, lift pits and any other enclosed spaces, 
commensurate with the requirements of Gas Characteristic Situation 2.’  I 
would agree with this recommendation.  
 

5.39 Therefore based on the assessment presented in the report standard ground 
gas, unforeseen contamination, imported soils, and imported aggregates 
conditions would be recommended should this application be approved. 
 

5.40 Ecology: I have considered the Environmental Statement (ES) submitted in 
support of this application, along with the Additional Bat Survey Information 
submitted by the applicant’s Ecological Consultants dated 19th June. In general 
I support the methodology, conclusions and recommendations of the ES, and 
am satisfied that the findings of the ES have influenced the design and layout of 
the proposed scheme. 
 

5.41 A series of mitigation measures have been put forward as a result of the ES and 
the applicant’s ecologist propose that these detailed measures to protect 
habitats and species will be set out in an Ecological Construction Method 
Statement (ECMS).  
 

5.42 Therefore we should require by planning condition an ECMS or CEMP to 
include (but not be limited to) those measures summarised in Table Q2.1 of the 
ES and the Additional Bat Survey Information, i.e. 
• Mitigation to protect designated sites and species including the 

establishment of an Ecological Protection Zone (EPZ) extending at least 10 
metres from the River Taff (not including the drainage works). The EPZ will 
be protected by exclusion fencing and signage to prevent activities such as 
incursion by vehicles or personnel, mechanical excavation, fires and 
stockpiling of materials.  

• The drainage working area on the River Taff embankment to be kept to a 
minimum and appropriate pollution control measures will be employed in 
accordance with the relevant Pollution Prevention Guidelines.  

• The ECMS will also restrict construction activities to daylight hours as far as 
possible, with the use of temporary lighting avoided between dusk and 
dawn. Directional and low-level lighting will be used away from sensitive 
habitat corridors.  

• Japanese Knotweed will be treated appropriately.  
• Appropriately designed drainage infrastructure to be installed to attenuate 

water quality and quality from entering the River Taff.  
• A sensitive lighting strategy will be implemented to minimise light spillage 

onto the River Taff SINC. Where lighting is required along road/pedestrian 
routes adjacent, lighting columns will be sited within the development 
footprint and directed away from habitat edges to minimise disturbance and 
light spill. Lighting should include directional, timed and/or low-lux lighting, 
utilising shields and/or hoods where required.  

24



• New landscaping will replace the trees that are to be removed. This will 
include native tree and shrub planting, preferably of local provenance. A 
landscape maintenance schedule will be provided to ensure the long-term 
management of these features.  

• Works to the roofs, soffits, bargeboards and fascias should ideally be 
undertaken between October to March so as to avoid the main bat roost and 
bird breeding seasons. Should this not be practicable, then a nesting bird 
check carried out by a suitably qualified ecologist will be required 
immediately prior to commencement of works.  

• Contractors carrying out the works will be warned of the possible presence of 
roosting bats and nesting birds and of their protected status via a tool-box.  In 
the event of any bats (or occupied bird nests) are found during works, then all 
works should cease in the affected area until advice from a suitably qualified 
and licensed ecologist is sought.   

 
5.43 In addition, we should seek to ensure enhancements to biodiversity as a result 

of this scheme, and details of such measures should be included in an ECMS 
or CEMP. Under section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, public bodies 
such as Cardiff Council are required to seek to maintain and enhance 
biodiversity, and in doing so to promote the resilience of ecosystems, in the 
exercise of their functions. 
 

5.44 Furthermore, section 5.2.8 of Planning Policy Wales states that:- ‘The planning 
system has an important part to play in meeting biodiversity objectives by 
promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to 
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses 
where damage is unavoidable.’  This is further reflected in LDP policies such 
as EN7. 
 

5.45 In terms of specific enhancement features, nesting or roosting opportunities for 
birds and bats should be incorporated into new build. An appropriate level of 
enhancement provision across this phase of the development would be: 5 x bat 
boxes for crevice-dwelling bats; 5 x Swift nest boxes; 2 x double House Martin 
cups; 2 x House Sparrow terraces. The applicant’s ecologist can advise on the 
make and model and suitable positioning of these features.   
 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 

5.46 The Adopted Cardiff Local Development Plan was previously subject to a 
Habitat Regulations Assessment (HRA) in 2012, and this process considered 
the likely significant effects to arise through Cardiff Council’s Strategic Sites 
(Policy KP2) including the EIA Site and wider Central Quay Masterplan Area, 
on European sites within the zone of influence such as the Severn Estuary 
Ramsar, SAC and SPA (Known as the Severn Estuary EMS).   

 
5.47 Given that the LDP HRA considered the impact of these effects on the Severn 

Estuary EMS features many of these can be scoped out of the present 
assessment based on the reasoning provided within the LDP HRA. However 
the effect of the proposed drainage infrastructure which will lead directly into 
the River Taff, requires further consideration. The Severn Estuary EMS is 
located approximately 2.7km downstream from the proposed drainage 

25



infrastructure connecting to the River Taff, with these designations being 
hydrologically connected via Cardiff Bay.  
 

5.48 The HRA determined that there would be no likely significant effects on those 
features subject to implementation of development in accordance with the 
policies of the Local Development Plan, in addition to effluent consent limits laid 
down by the Environment Agency/Natural Resources Wales and pollution 
contingency plans by the Cardiff Harbour Authority.  
 

5.49 Therefore, significant effects associated with site drainage, including surface 
water run-off and ground water contamination, are considered unlikely, subject 
to implementation of a sensitive drainage strategy in accordance with relevant 
planning policy which will be part of the inherent detailed design as described in 
Chapter G of this ES.  
 

5.50 Specifically, LDP Policy EN10 (Water Sensitive Design) requires for 
development to apply water sensitive urban design solutions, including: the 
management of water demand and supply; waste water and pollution; rainfall 
and runoff; watercourses and water resource; and flooding and water 
pathways. In addition, Policy EN11 (Protection of Water Resources) requires 
for development to not be permitted that would cause unacceptable harm to the 
quality or quantity of underground, surface or coastal waters.  

 
5.51 The overall conclusion of this HRA is therefore that the proposed development 

is not likely to have a significant effect upon the Severn Estuary EMS, or any 
other Natura 2000 site. 
 

5.52 Waste Management: No objection. The Officer advises that the office building 
bin store could reduce in size based on a daily collection by Cardiff Council’s 
Commercial Waste Service. 

 
6. EXTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
6.1 Welsh Water (DCWW): DCWW notes in their PAC response that the foul flows 

from the proposed development can be accommodated within the public 
sewerage system and that the discharge of surface water to the Taff is 
acceptable. DCWW recommends that a Hydraulic Modelling Assessment is 
concluded prior to the submission of a planning application to establish the 
adequacy of the existing water supply.  
 

6.2 The DCWW consultation response will be reported to Committee as a late 
representation. 

 
6.3 Natural Resources Wales (NRW):  NRW has a number of concerns/ 

recommendations, namely more work required to establish whether there are 
bats roosting in building B6 and to reduce potential adverse impact on otters in 
the event that works extend to areas close to or on the banks of the Taff; the 
inclusion of contaminated land conditions to address potential contamination of 
groundwater; and measures to mitigate potential risks of pollution of the River 
Taff SINC during the construction phase. 

26



 
6.4 Network Rail (NR): Network Rail’s response raises the following concerns:  
 

‘Network Rail continues to have some concerns about the above proposal due 
to the site being next to Network Rail land and our infrastructure and to ensure 
that no part of the development adversely impacts the safety, operation and 
integrity of the operational railway we have included asset protection comments 
which the applicant is strongly recommended to action should the proposal be 
granted planning permission.  The local authority should include these 
requirements as planning conditions if these matters have not been addressed 
in the supporting documentation submitted with this application. Issues of 
concern will continue to be discussed between Network Rail and the applicant. 
 
Network Rail will need to ensure that the applicants above proposal does not 
impede operational access to the track up by Semaphore House as a Road Rail 
Access Point will be required during and post electrification.  The initial 
proposal means a 70-90 degree turn into the current access ramp up to the 
area around Semaphore House area which is not acceptable by Network Rail 
for dropping off road rail vehicles and Mobile Elevated Work Platforms. 
Articulated lorries need to be dropped off at this location and also need to 
reverse back down.  Access is required at all times, not just during the small 
hours of the night, therefore any layout of the buildings will need to allocate 
appropriate access to and from our infrastructure. 
 
It should also be noted that the Station Facility Owner (Arriva Trains Wales) as 
well as Great Western Railways have expressed much concern on the 
proposed provision of rail replacement bus spaces on the ground level of the 
MSCP. They have stated that 3-4 spaces are not sufficient for current 
requirements and any future growth. They are currently gathering information 
on the space requirements for rail replacement bus services on an average 
day.  This is a difficult calculation to make due to the provision of buses mainly 
being an emergency need.  Current estimates suggested that the average 
requirement would be 6 (as minimum), however on some occasions in the past; 
15 buses have been in place at one time. 
 
It has been suggested by the applicant that the National Express coach bays 
could be shared with the rail replacement buses on emergencies but the Train 
Operating Companies have stated this is not sufficient due to National Express 
coaches normally dwelling in the spaces for over 10-15 mins which would 
cause congestion.’  

 
6.5 NR makes a number of recommendations to ensure the safe operation of the 

railway and the protection of Network Rail’s adjoining land. It is proposed to 
include these as an advisory. 
 

6.6 Police Architectural Liaison: South Wales Police have no objection and make a 
number of security-related recommendations. 

 
6.7 Cardiff Bus: No formal comments have been received from Cardiff Bus. 

 

27



6.8 Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust: The assessment shows that the area 
was originally part of the course of the River Taff, prior to its alteration in the 
mid-19th century for the creation of the railway and station, and remained as 
marsh until the 1880s when the area was reclaimed. The site has been used as 
both residential and industrial, including brewing, from that time onwards. The 
assessment also shows a potential for historic riverside activity, noted from the 
South Wales Waterfronts project.  
 

6.9 This particular phase of the redevelopment will not directly impact the more 
iconic structures of the brewery, but will result in the demolition of some 
elements. Whilst the impacts are not of such significance that would require 
pre-determination work, the impact on the upstanding buildings and potential 
buried archaeological resource will require mitigation. 
 

6.10 Therefore it is our recommendation that a condition requiring the applicant to 
submit a detailed written scheme of investigation for a programme of 
archaeological work to protect the archaeological resource should be attached 
to any consent granted by your Members. 

 
6.11 Wales & West Utilities: No objection. A plan of WWU infrastructure on site and 

general conditions for guidance are provided. 
 
7. REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The proposals were advertised as an Environmental Impact Assessment 

Application in the press and on site, and Local Members and neighbours were 
notified. No representations have been received. 
  

8. ASSESSMENT 
 
8.1 The main issues to be assessed are: 

a. Proposed land uses. 
b. Design of the buildings, including associated public realm and pedestrian/ 

cyclist linkages. 
c. Access and Parking 
d. Impact on current and future provision of public transport services (bus and 

railway). 
e. Conclusions of the Environmental Statement (ES). 
f. Issues raised by consultation responses 

 
a. Proposed land uses  
 

8.2 The proposed office use fully complies with Key Policy KP2A Cardiff Central 
Enterprise Zone and Regional Transport Hub, and will bring significant 
economic, social and environmental benefits to the city.  
 

8.3 The MSCP replaces NR parking places that will be lost as a result of the wider 
Central Quay development (284 spaces) and the redevelopment of the 
Saunders Road car park (46 spaces) to the north of the Station, and provides 
50 spaces for the office building. The balance of 315 spaces (which includes 21 

28



spaces for pick-up and drop-off) will be for public use, primarily intended for 
Station users.  

 
8.4 Parking demand at the existing NR car parks is close to or at capacity for much 

of the operational daytime period. Furthermore the analysis of car park use 
demonstrates that the car park is nearly 70% occupied at 7 am and 7pm 
indicating a high demand for parking by long distance rail commuters out of 
Cardiff Central.  
 

8.5 Network Rail has plans to expand and improve Station facilities to cope with 
projected increased demand for rail travel and is working with the Council, the 
Developer and Transport for Wales to deliver a state of the art railway station 
for Cardiff. 
 

8.6 The EIA Scoping Opinion consultation response from Network Rail identified a 
long term car park capacity need of between 890 spaces in a low growth 
scenario and 1,135 spaces in a high growth scenario, a view supported by the 
train operators Arriva Trains Wales and Great Western Railway. Network Rail 
have requested a minimum increase in parking provision in the MSCP to cater 
for increased demand of 50%, i.e. an additional 220 spaces taking the total to 
660 spaces. As a result of Network Rail’s concerns the developer agreed to put 
another floor on the MSCP increasing parking provision from to 580 to 695 
spaces to cater for medium to long-term growth in station use.  
 

8.7 Given the Network Rail growth scenario, the introduction of the Metro, the 
regeneration of the wider area, and the provision of an integrated transport hub 
serving the city and wider region, MSCP parking provision is acceptable. 

 
b. Design of the buildings including associated public realm and 

pedestrian linkages 
 

8.8 Design: The scale and design of the office building is appropriate for its city 
centre location, establishes key pedestrian routes and spaces, and sets a 
design benchmark for the Central Quay redevelopment. The marketplace 
concept at ground floor signals a radical and different approach to office design 
and will enliven the surrounding public realm, and subject to take-up by 
independent traders has the potential to create an interesting and attractive 
destination in its own right. 
 

8.9 The MSCP benefits from a generous and active ground floor and an interesting 
façade design. Considering its highly utilitarian nature the building has the 
potential to enhance Penarth Road and contribute positively to the public 
spaces to the north and south by virtue of the ground floor and façade 
treatment. 

 
8.10 Public Realm works: The proposals include a significant part of a new public 

square outside the rear entrance to Central Station (Station Square), the 
northern end of the main boulevard, and the new Crawshay Street entrance to 
the site, thus establishing some of the key pedestrian routes and spaces 

29



proposed in the supporting Central Quay Masterplan. The hard and soft 
landscaping proposals are considered acceptable in principle. 
 

8.11 A condition has been imposed requiring the submission of an inclusive access 
strategy for the MSCP for all groups.  

  
8.12 The on-site public realm proposals are acceptable subject to public realm 

standard landscaping conditions and MSCP inclusive access condition. 
 

8.13 Highway Enabling Works: Pedestrian access to the site forms part of the 
highway enabling works to Penarth Road and includes traffic signal-controlled 
pedestrian crossings across Penarth Road and the Phase 1 access road. 
 

8.14 Pedestrian movement across Penarth Road at the Dumballs road junction is 
already provided for and is controlled by traffic signals. It is likely that when the 
Metro is introduced to this part of Cardiff City Centre that major alterations to 
this junction may be required. As part of those works there is an opportunity for 
improved pedestrian crossing facilities such as straight-across crossings to be 
incorporated into the design in order to cater for the projected increase flow of 
pedestrians to/from Dumballs Road/ Callaghan Square. 
 

8.15 The highway enabling works are acceptable subject to a highway works 
condition and Section 278 agreement. 

 
 c. Access and parking 

 
8.16 The access arrangements to the office building for users and for servicing, and 

to the MSCP for parking and for pick-up and drop-off, are acceptable.  
 

8.17 The number of parking spaces provided for the office (50) is policy compliant 
given the highly sustainable location. The number of additional parking spaces 
for public use is considered acceptable. See the ‘Proposed land uses’ section 
above. 
 

8.18 Subject to highway enabling works on Penarth Road the impact on the local 
highway network is acceptable. 

 
d. Impact on public transport services 

 
8.19 Cardiff Central Station: The increase in public parking provision for rail users 

and the design and location of Station Square at the entrance to the Station 
enables the expansion and improvement of Central Station. The masterplan 
demonstrates how the site can accommodate the Metro running on the 
north-south boulevard, and does not prejudice a metro stop in the new square 
adjacent to the station entrance. 
 

8.20 Future plans for the station envisage a new tunnel link under the railway and/or 
a bridge link over the station providing a direct pedestrian route from the 
Central Quay development to Central Square, and the opportunity to fully 

30



integrate trains, buses, metro, taxis, cyclists, pedestrians and cars in line with 
the Cardiff LDP. 
 

8.21 National Express coach/ replacement rail bus parking is proposed, further 
integrating public transport services in the city centre. 
 
e. Conclusions of the Environmental Statement 

 
8.22 The LPA cannot grant planning permission unless it has taken the 

"environmental information" into consideration and it states in its decision that it 
has done so - Reg 3 (3) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2016.  

 
8.23 The application was accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) 

comprising Vol 1 Non-Technical Summary (NTS), Vol 2 Technical 
Assessments, and Vol 3 Appendices and Figures.   

 
8.24 The ES concludes that the likely environmental effects arising from the scheme 

are as follows: 
 
8.25 Transportation: Traffic impact has been assessed during the construction and 

operation phases. The study area and assessment scenarios have been 
agreed with CC. The assessment assumes the highway enabling works to 
Penarth Road that will be delivered as part of the phase 1 development, and the 
retention of the NR Fish Jetty car park. 

 
8.26 All links which are sensitive to traffic increases in the area directly surrounding 

the development site and key strategic routes to the wider network have been 
assessed. Impacts are classed as negligible, slight, moderate and substantial. 
Substantial and moderate impacts are considered to be significant in EIA 
terms. 

 
8.27 No traffic effect is classed as significant, i.e. moderate/ substantial adverse, in 

either the construction or operational phases. Whilst the traffic impact for the 
construction phase will not be significant, mitigation is proposed in the form of a 
Construction and Environment Management Plan (CEMP). The CEMP will 
manage delivery timetables, vehicle routing, and on-site behaviour. 

  
8.28 The operational phase will generally have a negligible effect upon traffic and 

driver delay, apart from the Dumballs Road link where there will be a slight 
adverse impact in terms of increased traffic volume resulting in increased 
queuing on the eastbound traffic in the AM peak, and the westbound traffic in 
the PM peak.  
 

8.29 However the development will introduce significant upgrades to the local 
sustainable transport infrastructure provision resulting in better continuity of 
routes and safer environments for cyclists and pedestrians. On balance the 
proposed measures adequately mitigate the development effect and will have 
an overall beneficial effect in terms of transportation. 

 

31



8.30 Townscape & Visual: The site is within an area of overall low townscape value 
with the exception of the listed Central station immediately to the north, and the 
Brains brewery building and chimney adjacent to the application site which are 
to be retained as part of the wider proposals for Central Quay. A total of 7 key 
public viewpoints requiring accurate visual representations (AVRs) were 
agreed. A further 2 assessments were made based on CGIs of long distance 
views from Penarth and the Barrage. The impact on the townscape receptors 
and on these views was assessed. 

 
8.31 The assessment concludes that there would be a substantial beneficial 

townscape effect deriving from the development. The setting of the retained 
brewery building and chimney and the Central station will be enhanced.   

 
8.32 Air Quality: A detailed AQ Assessment to assess concentrations of the 

pollutants Nitrogen Dioxide and Particulate Matter was undertaken for 22 
receptors in 4 different scenarios previously agreed with the Council, for both 
the construction phase and the operational phase in 2021 (assumed year of 
opening). An assessment of the dust generated from construction activities, 
was also undertaken. 
 

8.33 Crawshay Street has the potential to experience moderate adverse impacts 
from dust during the construction phase. The residual impact (ie. after 
mitigation) of construction-related activities is anticipated to be negligible/ minor 
adverse, provided that appropriate mitigation measures are implemented and 
enforced through an AQ Dust Management Plan as part of the Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP). 
 

8.34 For the operational phase AQ concentrations were modelled for a worst case 
scenario (vehicle emissions remain at current levels), and a best case scenario 
(vehicle emissions reduce as a result of improved engine technology/ 
introduction of electric vehicles etc). In the worst case scenario  impacts would 
be moderate adverse at 6 receptors and slight adverse at 2 receptors. In the 
best case scenario (vehicle emissions reduce) the impact would reduce to 
negligible/ slight adverse.  
 

8.35 The ES concludes that a slight/moderate adverse effect on air quality is 
expected if Emissions Factors remain at 2016 levels. However, if levels reduce 
as expected the impact would not have a significant effect on pollution 
concentrations in the area 

 
8.36 Ground Conditions: The Ground Conditions Assessment concludes that the 

risk to end users of the site is low. 
 
8.37 Noise & Vibration: The assessment considered noise and vibration impacts 

during the construction and operation of the proposed development on nearest 
residential properties on Crawshay Street, Penarth Road and Taff Mead 
Embankment, and the commercial, hotel and office developments which are in 
close proximity to the site. 
 

32



8.38 The assessment found that all receptors, with the exception of Crawshay 
Street, are predicted to experience a neutral to minor adverse effect during the 
construction phase. Notwithstanding proposed mitigation measures as part of 
the CEMP there will be a significant moderate adverse impact from both noise 
and vibration on Crawshay Street during foundation works. Structural damage 
from vibration during piling works is not significant. 
 

8.39 Operational plant associated with the development is predicted to have a minor 
adverse effect on Crawshay Street and the closest house on Penarth Road. 
 

8.40 The impact of noise from future traffic volumes generated by the development 
on the surrounding road network is predicted to have a negligible impact with 
the exception of the Clayton Hotel where a minor adverse impact is predicted. 
 

8.41 Water Resources: A strategy has been developed for draining the site and 
agreed in principle with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW). A Hydraulic 
Modelling Assessment is being undertaken to assess the adequacy of the 
water supply. Mitigation measures will be required during the construction 
phase only to ensure that the water quality in the river will not be affected. 
 

8.42 Ecology: An Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey and Bat survey was carried out 
on the site. The impact assessment concluded there could be minor adverse 
effects on the Severn estuary designated sites and the River Taff SINC without 
mitigation. With appropriate mitigation measures impacts are assessed as 
negligible. Key to effective mitigation will be an Ecological Construction Method 
Statement including the establishment of an ecological protection zone with a 
10m buffer from the River Taff, pollution control measures in the drainage 
infrastructure, and restricted lighting during the construction and operational 
phases. 
 

8.43 Built Heritage, Socio-Economic, Population and Human Health, Daylight/ 
Sunlight and Overshadowing, and Wind Microclimate: The environmental 
impact of the Phase 1 development in all of the above areas is assessed as 
either negligible or beneficial. 
 

8.44 Cumulative impact: The assessment of the cumulative impact includes the 
wider Central Quay masterplan, Central Square (completed, under 
construction and consented), Williams Court, Trade Street (under 
construction), Land at Suffolk House, Trade Street (planning application), and 
Crawshay Court, Curran Road (consented). The ES concludes that the likely 
environmental effects arising from the wider development are not significant. 

 
8.45 The ES also presents an alternative cumulative assessment scenario that looks 

at the potential impacts if Central Quay accommodates the level of car parking 
sought by Network Rail and other rail operators (890 spaces in a low growth 
scenario and up to 1,135 spaces in a high growth scenario).  
 

8.46 This shows that increased parking provision within the site would have an 
adverse impact of moderate to substantial significance on driver delay for both 

33



the high and low growth scenarios and moderate adverse impacts on accidents 
and safety during the high growth scenario. All other impacts are not significant. 
 

8.47 It is considered that the ES has properly assessed the likely environmental 
effects of the development. No significant adverse operational environmental 
impacts have been identified.  
 
f. Issues raised by consultation responses 
 

8.48 Landscaping/ public realm: The Tree Officer raises some concerns over the 
choice of tree species and the planting methodology. The overall public realm/ 
landscaping scheme is however considered acceptable subject to further 
discussion of detailed elements of the scheme at condition discharge stage. 
 

8.49 Noise & Vibration: The concerns raised by the Pollution Control (Noise) officer 
are mainly related to noise and vibration during the construction phase. The 
redevelopment of a city centre site is bound to raise such concerns and the 
construction management plan required by condition will include a noise and 
vibration mitigation plan showing how the impact on the residents of Crawshay 
Street and Penarth Road can be mitigated/ minimised. 
 

8.50 Air Quality (AQ): The concerns raised by the Pollution Control (AQ) officer 
relate primarily to the methodology used in assessing the AQ impacts during 
the operational phase, and to dust during the construction phase. The 
methodology used to assess the impact of the operational phase (traffic) is in 
the process of being amended as a result of discussions between the Council 
and the applicant’s AQ consultant. The Construction & Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) required by condition will include a dust control plan 
showing how the impact on the residents of Crawshay Street and Penarth Road 
can be mitigated/ minimised.  
 

8.51 Natural Resources Wales (NRW): The issues raised by NRW in relation to 
contamination are covered by standard land contamination conditions. The 
issues raised in relation to bats have been addressed by virtue of an additional 
survey of the brewery building which concludes that bats do not use the 
building to roost. In relation to the impact of construction activities on the River 
Taff SINC a condition is included which requires the submission of an 
Ecological Construction Method Statement (ECMS) for approval by the 
Council’s Ecology Officer.  

 
8.52 Ecology: The Ecology Officer is satisfied that the impact on the River Taff SINC 

can be adequately mitigated through the implementation of an approved ECMS 
and concludes in his Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) that the proposed 
development is not likely to have a significant impact upon the Severn Estuary 
designated sites, or any other designated sites. 
 

8.53 Network Rail (NR): Concerns raised by Network Rail relate primarily to the 
number of public parking spaces and rail replacement bus stands to be 
provided. The former has been addressed by the addition of a floor to the 
MSCP. The Transportation Officer is satisfied with the level of parking provision 

34



proposed. In relation to the number of rail replacement bus stands (3 stands 
provided, NR requests a minimum of 6) the developer is in discussions with 
Network Rail and there is potential for additional stands to be accommodated 
on the existing NR car park as part of future phases. 
 

8.54 The Transportation Officer concludes that on balance the economic, 
employment and place-making opportunities that Central Quay offers, along 
with improvements to the sustainable transport infrastructure, and the positive 
impact of emerging Metro and Bus Station proposals, outweigh the theoretical 
impact on traffic along the Penarth Road corridor and Dumballs Road junction. 

 
8.55 Waste Management: Waste management arrangements are acceptable 

subject to a condition for more details. 
 
Other Matters 
 

8.56 Equalities Impact Assessment: The Public Sector Equality Duty (Section 149 of 
the Act 2010) requires the Council to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, promote equality of opportunity and foster good relations 
between different communities. The Act identifies a number of ‘protected 
characteristics’, namely, age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil 
partnership. The Council’s duty under the above Act has been given due 
consideration in the determination of this application. In terms of the promotion 
of inclusive access, equality and diversity, there will be no apparent abnormal 
differential impact on any people protected under the Equality Act 2010 as 
assessed at this stage, noting that the detailed design of the public realm, 
including the highway improvement works is the subject of planning conditions 
and/ or Section 106 legal agreement. 

  
8.57 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: Section 3 of the Wellbeing 

of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on public bodies to 
carry out sustainable development in accordance with the sustainable 
development principle to act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs 
of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to 
meet their own needs (Section 5).  

 
8.58 This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application and it is 

concluded that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the 
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the recommended decision.  
 

8.59 Statutory pre-application public consultation: The statutory pre-application 
public consultation was carried out in accordance with legislation and is 
considered acceptable.  

 
9.  CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 The application is for the first phase of the redevelopment of a strategic city 

centre brownfield site to the south of the railway station (Central Quay). The 
proposals have been developed in conjunction with the Council, Network Rail, 

35



and Welsh Government, and fully take into account emerging plans for the 
future Cardiff Metro, and the expansion of Cardiff Central Station. Considered 
together with the redevelopment of Central Square to the north of the railway 
the proposals have the potential to deliver a fully integrated transport hub for 
the city and wider region. 

 
9.2 The proposals deliver a significant quantum of office space in a high quality 

mixed use office block, public realm in the form of a generous new public 
square to the front of the station entrance, and a multi-storey car park that 
unlocks the future development of the area by accommodating the future 
growth of Central Station and the redevelopment of the wider area.  
 

9.3 The proposals are policy compliant and there are no objections from Council 
Service Areas or external consultees. The Environmental Statement concludes 
that no significant adverse operational environmental impacts have been 
identified. 
 

9.4 The Phase 1 proposals and supporting Central Quay Masterplan substantially 
realise the vision for the area in accordance with the 2016 Local Development 
Plan and it is recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to 
conditions.   

 
 

36



T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 L

A
N

E

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E
T
 L

A
N

E

P
L
A

N
T

A
G

E
N

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

PEN
TR

E G
ARDENS

F
IT

Z
H

A
M

O
N

 E
M

B
A

N
K

M
E

N
T

WOOD STREET H
O

P
E

 S
T
R

E
E

T
 / S

T
R

Y
D

 H
O

P
E

G
R

E
A

T
 W

E
S

T
E

R
N

 L
A

N
E

WOOD STREET

CANAL PARADE

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

WILLIAMS WAY

D
U

M
B

A
L
L
S

 R
O

A
D

WILLIAMS WAY

PENARTH ROAD / HEOL PENARTH

CANAL PARADE

C
A

N
A

L
 P

A
R

A
D

E

LO
N

 Y
 F

E
LI

N

TRESILLIAN WAY

G
R

E
A

T
 W

E
S

T
E

R
N

 L
A

N
E

STREET

H
E

O
L
 P

E
N

A
R

T
H

FFORDD TRESILLIAN

C
R

A
W

S
H

A
Y

C
U

R
R

A
N

 R
O

A
D

P
E

N
A

R
T

H
 R

O
A

D

CUSTOMHOUSE STREET

S
T
 M

A
R

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

H
E

O
L
 E

G
L
W

Y
S

 F
A

IR

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

HEOL Y TOLLTY

P
E

R
C

Y

HARPUR STREET

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

W
EST C

ANAL W
HARF

M
IL

L 
LA

N
E

S
C

O
T
T

 R
O

A
D

H
E

O
L
 E

G
L
W

Y
S

 F
A

IR

T
R

E
S

IL
L
IA

N
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

W
OOD S

TREET

WOOD STREET

SAUNDERS R
OAD

P
E
N

A
R

T
H

 R
O

A
D

 / 
H

E
O

L 
P

E
N

A
R

T
H

G
LANFA G

ORLLEW
IN

 Y
 G

AM
LAS

D
U

M
B

A
L
L
S

 R
O

A
D

STREET

C
A

N
A

L
 P

A
R

A
D

E

CUSTOMHOUSE STREET

S
C

H
O

O
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

HEOL Y TOLLTY

E
M

B
A

N
K

M
E

N
T

GARDENS

P
E
N

TR
E P
EN

TR
E
 P

LAC
E

T
A

F
F

S
 M

E
A

D

D
IN

AS
 PLAC

E

H
A

F
O

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

D
IN

A
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

TR
E

N
P

GARDENS

FIZTHAM
O

N LANE

E

T
A

F
F

S
 M

E
A

D
 E

M
B

A
N

K
M

E
N

T

PENDYRIS STREET

MERCHES GARDENS

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 L

A
N

E

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E
T
 L

A
N

E

P
L
A

N
T

A
G

E
N

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

PEN
TR

E G
ARDENS

F
IT

Z
H

A
M

O
N

 E
M

B
A

N
K

M
E

N
T

WOOD STREET H
O

P
E

 S
T
R

E
E

T
 / S

T
R

Y
D

 H
O

P
E

G
R

E
A

T
 W

E
S

T
E

R
N

 L
A

N
E

WOOD STREET

CANAL PARADE

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

WILLIAMS WAY

D
U

M
B

A
L
L
S

 R
O

A
D

WILLIAMS WAY

PENARTH ROAD / HEOL PENARTH

CANAL PARADE

C
A

N
A

L
 P

A
R

A
D

E

LO
N

 Y
 F

E
LI

N

TRESILLIAN WAY

G
R

E
A

T
 W

E
S

T
E

R
N

 L
A

N
E

STREET

H
E

O
L
 P

E
N

A
R

T
H

FFORDD TRESILLIAN

C
R

A
W

S
H

A
Y

C
U

R
R

A
N

 R
O

A
D

P
E

N
A

R
T

H
 R

O
A

D

CUSTOMHOUSE STREET

S
T
 M

A
R

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

H
E

O
L
 E

G
L
W

Y
S

 F
A

IR

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

HEOL Y TOLLTY

P
E

R
C

Y

HARPUR STREET

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

W
EST C

ANAL W
HARF

M
IL

L 
LA

N
E

S
C

O
T
T

 R
O

A
D

H
E

O
L
 E

G
L
W

Y
S

 F
A

IR

T
R

E
S

IL
L
IA

N
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

W
OOD S

TREET

WOOD STREET

SAUNDERS R
OAD

P
E
N

A
R

T
H

 R
O

A
D

 / 
H

E
O

L 
P

E
N

A
R

T
H

G
LANFA G

ORLLEW
IN

 Y
 G

AM
LAS

D
U

M
B

A
L
L
S

 R
O

A
D

STREET

C
A

N
A

L
 P

A
R

A
D

E

CUSTOMHOUSE STREET

S
C

H
O

O
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

HEOL Y TOLLTY

E
M

B
A

N
K

M
E

N
T

GARDENS

P
E
N

TR
E P
EN

TR
E
 P

LAC
E

T
A

F
F

S
 M

E
A

D

D
IN

AS
 PLAC

E

H
A

F
O

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

D
IN

A
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

TR
E

N
P

GARDENS

FIZTHAM
O

N LANE

E

T
A

F
F

S
 M

E
A

D
 E

M
B

A
N

K
M

E
N

T

PENDYRIS STREET

MERCHES GARDENS

7

90200

3

90200

1

90200

11

90200

CENTRAL SQUARE

CARDIFF CENTRAL STATION

R
IV

E
R

 T
A

F
F

R
IV

E
R

 T
A

F
F

PROJECT ORIGIN. VOLUME LEVEL TYPE DISCIP. NUMBER

SUITABILITY :

REVISION:

DOCUMENTATION - SIGN-OFF

A - Fit for construction

B - Fit for construction, with comments

ARCHIVE

AB - As Built

FC - Final Construction

* For internal pre-issue usage only.

** For model file usage only.

DRAWN BY :

JOB NO : SCALE :

DATE :

DRAWING TITLE :

PROJECT TITLE :

SUITABILITY NUMBER KEY:

WIP

S0 - Work in Progress*

SHARED

S1 - Fit for co-ordination**

S2 - Fit for information

S3 - Fit for internal review and comment

S4 - Fit for construction approval

DOCUMENTATION

D1 - Fit for costing

D2 - Fit for tender

D3 - Fit for contractor design

D4 - Fit for manufacture/ procurement

Rio Cardiff 

21a Allensbank Road 

Cardiff CF14 3PN

+44 (0)29 2025 0066

studio@rioarchitects.com

www.rioarchitects.com

@rioarchitects

Rio London 

19  21 Hatton Garden

London EC1N 8BA

+44 (0)20 2691 7565

Architecture Sustainability Interiors Visualisation

Notes:

© Rio Architects Ltd. 

This drawing is copyright and must not be reproduced or disclosed to third parties without the prior written consent of Rio Architects Ltd.

Do not scale this drawing.  Responsibility is not accepted by Rio Architects Ltd for errors made by others during the printing or scaling of this drawing.  Use only 

written dimensions.  It is the contractor's responsibility to verify all dimensions before commencing any work.  Any discrepancies are to be notified in writing to Rio 

Architects Ltd immediately.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other relevant project drawings, specifications and schedules prepared by Rio Architects Ltd and any other 

relevant consultants, specialists or subcontractors.

CDM notes are provided to assist the contractor in managing residual hazards identified during the design stage.  Any such notes do not relieve the contractor of 

his duties and he must provide a safe system of work based on method statements, risk assessments etc.

CHECKED BY: APPROVED BY :

STATUS:

2
9

/0
1

/2
0

1
8

 2
0

:3
8

:2
9

C
:\

U
se

rs
\s

st
a

ll
a

rd
\D

o
cu

m
e

n
ts

\0
3

0
5

-R
IO

-0
0

-X
X

-M
3

-A
-0

9
0

0
7

-S
it

e
-V

2
0

1
7

_
ss

ta
ll
a

rd
@

ri
o

a
rc

h
it

e
ct

s.
co

m
.r

v
t

1

1 : 1250 @ A1

0305 RIO 00 XX DR A 90010

S2

SRS

0305

11/12/17

Location Plan

Central Quay Phase 1

-

CT RR

PLANNING

Rev Description Rev'd Chk'd Date

1 Planning Issue SRS CT 31.01.18

N

0 50 100 m

37



8.00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
25

8.2
5

8.25

8
. 2

5

8
.2

5

8.
25

8
.2

5

8.
25

8
.2

5

8.25

8.25

8.25

8.25

8.25

8.25

8
.2

5

8.25

8.25

8.25

8
.5

0

8.
50

8.50

8.
50

8
. 5

0

8
.5

0

8
.5

0

8.
50

8.
50

8
. 5

0

8. 50

8
.5

0

8.
50

8.50

8
.5

0

8.50

8
.5

0

7.
75

7.50

7.
50

7
. 5

0

7
. 5

0

7
. 5

0

7.50

7.
5

0

7.50

7
.5

0

7.
75

7.75

7
.7

5

7.75

7 .
75

7
. 7

5

7
.7

5

7
.7

5

7
.7

5

7
.7

5

7
.7

5

7
. 7

5

7
.7

5

7
.7

5

7
.7

5

7.7
5

7.
75

7.75

7
.7

5

7
.75

7.75

7.7
5

7.
75

7
. 7

5

7.7
5

7
.7

5

7.
75

7
. 7

5

7.75

7
.7

5

7.
75

7
.75

7.
75

7. 7
5

7
.7

5

8.00

8.
00

8.00

8
. 0

0

8.
00

8.0
0

8.
00

8
.0

0

8
. 0

0

8.0
0

8.00

8
.0

0

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.0
0

8.00

8
.0

0

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8
. 0

0

8.00

8.00

8.
00

7.75

7.75

7
.75

7
.75

7
. 75

7.50

7
.5

0

7
.50

7
.5

0

7
.5

0

8
.0

0

7.75

8.00

8.00

7. 50

7.75

7.75

7.75

7.75

7. 7
5

7.75

7.75

7.75

7.75

7.75

7.
7

5

7.50

7.50

7.50

7
.5

0

7.50

7.
50

7.
50

7 .5
0

7
.5

0

7.5
0

7
.5

0

7.
25

7.25

7.
25

7.
2

5

8.00

8.00

8
. 0

0

7.75

1
0

.5
0

1
0

.2
5

11.00

10.75

12.25

11
.5

0

11.5
0

1
2.

0
0

12.00

11
. 7

5

1
1 .

7
5

11
.0

0

11
.0

0

11
.2

5

11
.2

5

11.25

1
0

.7
5

9.75

9
.7

5

9.50
9.25

9
.2

5

9 .
0

0

10.00

10.00

8.
75

8.7
5

8.75

8
.2

5

7.75

9.00

8.75

8.00

8
.0

0

8.00

8.75

8.75

8.75

8
. 7

5

8
.7

5

8.7
5

8. 2
5

7.
75

7.
75

7
.7

5

7
.7

5

7.
75

7.
75

7
.7

5

8.50

7.50

7.50

7.
50

7
.5

0

7.
50

7.
50

7
.50

8.00

8
.2

5

8.25

7.
7

5

7.75

7.75

7.75

7.
75

7.75

7.
5

0

7. 5
0

7.50

7.
5

0

7
.5

0

7
.5

0

7
. 5

0

7
.50

7
.5

0

7.75

8
.0

0

8.00

8.
0

0

8.00

8.00

8
.00

8.0
0

8
.0

0

8.00

8.25

7
.7

5

8.00

8
.00

J2
8.649

J1
7.821

J3
7.726

J4
11.121

RET2
11.037

J2A
7.806

J2B
8.016

J2C
7.972

J2D
8.734

J2C1
7.975

J2E
8.957

J1B
7.611

J1C
7.990

G1
7.661

G2
7.418

J4A
8.709

J4B
11.382

J4C
12.331

J5
12.001

7.867

BK7
7.998

BK9
7.917

B6A
7.885

B6B
7.710

B6F
7.780

B6C
7.828

B6D
8.261

B6E
8.224

B6H
7.703

B6G
7.741

B6J
7.803

B6K
7.946

B7AX
7.811

B7CX
7.816

B7BX
7.760

B8A
8.089

B8B
8.078

B8C
7.869

B9B
7.459

B9C
7.603

B9D
7.470

B20
7.693

J2
7.616

AG1
7.449

AG11
8.607

AG12
7.734

AG13
8.398

B1
7.279

J1Q
7.821

B2
7.402

B3A
7.617

B4
7.639

B5
8.000

B6
7.651

B7
7.564

B8
7.954

B7F
7.492

J2Q
8.643

B9
7.728

B9A
7.855

B2B
7.796

B2C
7.809

B2D
7.876

B2A
7.380

B3B
7.825

G1
7.661

G2
7.415

G2A
7.412

B2AA
7.367

BK1
7.855

BKR1
7.894

BKR2
7.886

BK3
8.117

BKR4
7.968

BK4
8.162

BK6
7.954

BK8

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Paved

Paved

Paved

Paved

Stmp

Stmp

Stmp

Stmp

Gravel

Gravel

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Block paviors

Paved

Paved

Paved

Paved

Paved

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete
Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

QC

QC

QC

QC

QC

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

FFL

FFL

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.
Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.
Bol.

Bol.
Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

G

G

G

G G

G

G

SP

SP

SP

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RSRS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post
Post

Post

Post

Post

SC

SC

SC
SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

PB

DP

DP

DP

DP

DPDP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

Bin

Bin

Bin

RE

GC

Disabled

I/R
 0.8h

Grill

Grill

Sign

Sign

Sign

Rough ground

I/R
 3.1h

Sign

Cable rising

Sign

C
/B

 3
.0

h

G

Gas pipe

Brick wall 0.7h

B
ri

ck
 w

al
l  0

. 8
h

Conc.

B
r i

ck
 w

al
l  0

. 8
h

Cross hatchCol.

Ash tray

Disabled

Disabled

Disabled

Disabled

Asphalt

Block paviors

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

Cross hatch

I/R
 0.8h

I/R
 0.8

h

I/R
 0.8

h

Concrete

Armco barrier 0.5h

Pallisade fence 2.2h

Asphalt

Ash tray

Stand

Paved

G

Tactile

G

G

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Box

Paved

Paved

Paved

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Cross hatch

Cross hatch

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Tactile

Tactile

Block paviors

G

G

G

Block paviors

Cross hatch

Cross hatch

Asphalt

Block paviors

G

G

Conc.

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Sign

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Grass

Bushes

Asphalt

Asphalt

Cross hatch

Asphalt

Tactile

Block paviors

Grass

Conc.

Conc.

Grass

Block paviors

B
r i

ck
 w

al
l  0

. 8
h

B
r i

ck
 w

al
l  0

. 8
h

Brick
 wall 0

.8h

Brick wall 0.7h

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Asphalt

Tactile

Block paviors

Tactile

G

G

G

G

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Block paviors

Block paviors

Tactile

Asphalt

Tactile
G

Cross hatch

Cross hatch

Block paviors

G

Gas pipe

Gas governor

Paved

G

Conc.

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Grass

Grass

Grass

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

Paved

Paved

Paved

Paved

Grass

G

G

Grass

Asphalt

Paved

G

Grass

Grass

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

G

G

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Tactile

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Tactile

Block paviors

Tactile

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Tactile

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Gravel

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Spot Heights

Spot Heights

Block base

Grate

Area of stored bar riers

Col.

T
o

p
 of  slo p

in
g  b

u
ild

i n
g

C/B 2.2h

R
o

ug
h 

g
ro

un
d

H
/R

 0
.9

h

Wall 2.5h

Rough ground

1.2h I/R

I/ R
 0.8

h

Extent of  build ing  overhang

Pallisade fence 2.4h

I/R 2.6h

Top of wall

Top of wall

Top of wall

Armc o barrier 0 .9h

C
/ B

 2.0h

E
xte

nt of ad
ve

rtisin
g bo

a rd

C
/ B

 3.0h

C
/ B

 2.0h
E

xten
t of ad

ve
rtisin

g b
oa

r d

C/B 2.8h

I/R
 3.1h

I /R 3.1h

Conc.

Extent of building overhang

Extent of building overhang

E
x

te
nt

 o
f  

bu
ild

in
g 

ov
er

ha
ng

Cover

SV

I /R
 0 .8

h

I/ R
 0 .8

h

I /R
 0 .8

h

I/R
 0. 8

h

Bicycle rack

Ex tent of  build ing overhang

Concrete

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

Box

Box

I /R 2.6h

Concrete

Concrete

Overgrown

Box

I /R 2.6h

D
ra

in
a

ge
 c

h
a

nn
e

l

Stored mater ials

Gravel

Asphalt

Pallisade fence 2.4h

P
a

lli
sa

de
 fe

n
ce

 2
.4

h

Slab

Asp.

Col.

Slab

Concrete

Asphalt

Rough ground

Slab

Slab

Slab

Slab

Slab

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Container

I/R 3.1h

I/R 3.1h

I/R
 3

.1
h

bicycle

bicycle

D
ra

i n
ag

e
 c

h
a

nn
el

0.05h 0.2w

Grate

Grate

Grate

Sign

H
/R

 1
.0

h

H
/ R

 1
.0

h

R
et

. w
a

l l 
0

. 7
h

0.5h

0.2h

Induction loop

H/R 1.0h

traf lgts

I/R
 1.0

h

I /R
 1.0

h

I/R 1.0h

Block paviors

Tactile

Tactile

Tactile

Block paviors

Block paviors

Tactile

Tactile

Block paviors

Tactile

Tactile

post wi th sec cam

lit

metal  1.0h

metal  f 1.0h

Block paviors

Box
Box Box

Tactile

Block paviors

Induction loop

Induction loop

Block paviors

IC

Box

Box

BoxIC

G
G

KO

Block paviors

IC

G
G

I/R 1.0
h

I/R 1.0h

G
G

IC

IC

IC

IC

IC
IC

IC

IC

IC

IC

G

G

IC

IC

IC

IC

IC

I/
R

 1
. 0

h

G

G

G

I/R 1.0h
SV

IC

IC

I/R
 1.0

h

I /R 1.0h

IC IC I/R 1.0
h

G

G

G

BTIC
I/R 1.0h

Tactile

Block paviors

Block paviors

Grate

IC

IC

IC

I/R
 1.0

h

Bushes
BT

Paved

Gravel & planting
P

a
ve

d

Paved

Gravel & planting

P
a

ve
d

Paved

Tactile

Tactile

Box

Box

G

Block paviors

BT

Block paviors

Block paviors

Paved

Tactile

Tactile

G

G

Paved

Tactile

BT

IC
IC

Block paviors

Tactile

Block paviors

Asphalt

Tactile

Block paviors
BT

BT

BT

Tactile

Tactile

H
/ R

 1
.0

h

R
e

t.
 w

a
ll

Paved

G

FH

BT

BT

G

Box

Block paviors

Block paviors

E
xt

e
nt

s
 o

f b
u

i ld
in

g

G

BT

Block paviors

FH

Grate

G

IC

Block paviors

Block paviors

Tactile

Block paviors

Tactile

G

G

Block paviors

BT

Block paviors

FH

P/R 0.95h

Conc. Beams 1.5h

I/R
 1

.0
h

Pedestrian

Disabled

P/W 1.0h

Barrier 0.6h

I/R 1.2h

P/W 1.0h

BT

B
a

rrie
r 0.6

h

Gravel

Conc.

Gravel

Conc.

Gravel

Conc.

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

S
u

rface  dra
i n

Surface drain

Surface drain

Asphalt

Asphalt

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Gravel

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Conc.Gravel

Concrete

Building

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

thrsh

ext to bld

ext to bld

ext to kirb under fence

ext to edge

ext bk 2 ktext
con pill

in 2 wall

ext to bld

ext oppo

need to intersect with perp wall

67-71 ht 2.2m

76-82 2.4

ext to bld

ext bld

ext to bld

ext to build

ext to buld

ext to end point

ext to buld

intersect

yel hatch no entry

van parts

approx wal l end

O
ve

rh
e

a
d

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

G

G

Barrie
r 1

.4h

Barrie
r 1

.4
h

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Paved

Col.

Col.

Col.

Silo

Silo

Asphalt

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Drainage channel

Drainage channel

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

No access

G

Concrete

Concrete

Asphalt

Car obstruction

G

D
rai nage channel

D
rai nage channel

D
rai nage channel

D
rai nage channel

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

B
arrier 1.4h

Barrie
r 1

.4h

Paved

Conc.

Building

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

G

G

Dra
ina

ge ch
ann

el

Dra
ina

ge ch
ann

el

G

G

Wall 0.1h

B
ar

r ie
r 1

.2h

Barr i
er 1

.2h

B
arrier 1.2h

B
arrier 1.2h

W
all o

bsc
ure

d

R
et. w

all

Ret . w
all

Sto
ne wall 1

.3h

Concrete

Ornament

Paved

Concrete

Gravel

Gravel

to kb

flg pl

del

866-888 ht 1.9

Used last station setup

ext to build

ht 2.0

2.0

ext to build
ext to bld

ext to bld

ext to bld

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

P
a

v
ed

Concrete

Block paviors

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete
Paved

Plinth

Concrete

Conc.

B
arrier 1.4h

G

Col.

Block paviors

Paved

G

G

Concrete

Block paviors

D
r a

ina
g

e
 cha

nn
e

l

Box

Block paviors

C
o

n
c

re te

G

Block paviors

Pipes

Concrete

B
r ic k w

al l

B
ri ck

 w
a

l l

G

Gravel

Concrete

Concrete

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Asphalt

Block paviors

S
to

n
e

 w
a

ll 1
.3

h

F
e

n
ce

 1. 5
h

S
to

n
e

 w
a

ll  1
. 3

h

F
e

n
ce

 1. 5h

Gravel

Gravel

C
o

rr u
ga

te
d

 fe
n

ce 2.3
h

C
o

r r u
gate

d
 fe

n
ce 2.3

h

Silo Farm

Brick wall 2.6h

D
ra

i na
g

e
 ch

a
nn

e
l

D
ra

i na
g

e
 ch

a
nn

e
l

G

G

D
ra

i na
g

e
 ch

a
nn

e
l

D
ra

i na
g

e
 ch

a
nn

e
l

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

B
r ick  w

a ll 2. 6
h

W
ire

 m
esh

 2.0
h

Block paviors

Concrete

Block paviors

G

Asphalt

FH

Concrete

Block paviors

Block paviors

FH

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

Block paviors

G

O
verhang

Block paviors

G

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

Block paviors

Asphalt

Service duct

Service duct

Concrete

B
a

rr
ie

r 
1.

5
h

B
a

rr
ie

r 
1.

5
h

G

Concrete

Dra
ina

ge ch
ann

el

E
xtents of metal stairs

E
xtents of m

etal stairs

E
xtents of m

etal stairs

W
a

ll

W
a

ll

Stone w
all 0.2h

R
ough ground

Paved

Paved

Conc.

Conc.

Dr. c
h.

Dr.c
h.

Asphalt

Asphalt

Conc.Dr. c
h.

Asphalt

C
on

c re
te

Metal cage 2.0
h

M
etal cage

 2.0 h

Gas bottle store

Concrete

Concrete

D
ra inage channel

D
ra ina

ge channe l

W
ood retaining wall 0.4h

Vents

Barrie
r 1

.2h

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Drainage channel

Building

B
ric

k
 w

al
l  0

.3
h

Bar rel  storage area

Concrete

Concrete

Approximate alignment of Wire mesh fence 2.0h

Barrier 1.4h

Barrier 1.4h

Approximate alignment of Wire mesh fence 2.0h

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Iron Barrier 0.6h

Concrete

K
e

rb  s
to n

e
s

Bar rel  storage area

Concrete

Concrete

Drainage channel
Concrete

Concrete

Rough ground

Concrete

Rough ground

Rough ground

Rough ground

Rough ground

Rough ground

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

G

G

G G

G

G

G

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Block paviors

Block paviors

Paved

BP

G

BP

Concrete

Wall 0
.4h I/R

 2.1h Centre

Wall 0
.4h I/R

 2.1h Centre

Wall 0
.4h I/R

 2.1h Centre

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

Conc.

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Dra
ina

ge C
hann

el

FH

FH

Asphalt

Concrete

Asphalt

Grass

Bric
k W

all 0
. 4

h
I/R

 2.
2h

Asphalt

Asphalt

C
oncrete

C
oncrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

FH

Block Paviors

Concrete Sl abs

W
ir e M

esh

Conc.

Paved

Paved

Paved

Paved

Brick Wall 0.7h I/R 0.8h

B
rick W

all 0. 7h I/R
 0

.8
h

B
ri

ck
 W

a
ll 

0 .
7

h 
I/R

 0
.8

h

Paved

Paved

Paved

B
lock P

aviors

Paved

Paved

Paved

CR

Dra
ina

ge C
h.

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

Paved

Concrete

Paved

Paved

Paved

Unable to Survey Obstructed

Post

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Dra
ina

ge Chann
el

Dra
ina

ge Chann
el

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Asphalt

Conc.

Conc.

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

G

G

Concrete

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

G

G

Asphalt

Conc.

Concrete

G

Conc.

FH
Asphalt

Asphalt

Barrier 1.2h

Barrier 1.2h

Rough ground

Overgrown

Conc.

D
raina

ge
 cha

nn
el

Asphalt

Container

Container

Container

Skip

Skip

Concrete

C
on

cr
et

e

Extent  of stored materials

Building

Por takabin

15

14

13

11

10

9

8 Concrete

Concrete

Drainage channel

D
ra

i n
a

g
e

 c
h

a
nn

e
l

D
ra

i n
a

g
e

 c
h

a
nn

e
l

B
a

rr
ie

r 
1 .

2h

Tank

Tank

Tank

Tank

Tank

Tank

Building

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

B
ri

ck
 w

al
l 1

.3
h

Support

Support

Support

Support

Support

Support

Paved

Paved

Silo

Silo

O
ve

rh
e a

d
 p

i p
e

O
ve

rh
e a

d
 p

i p
e

Overhead pipe

Overhead pipe

Building

G

Container

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Barrier 1.2h

Barrier 1.2h

D
r.

ch
.

Concrete

Concrete

Paved

G

Silo

Silo

Silo

Silo

Silo

Concrete

Paved

Post

Post

Post

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Concrete

Col.

Col.

Col.

Concrete

Asphalt

Concrete

Asphalt

Concrete

Asphalt

Concrete

Concrete

Service duct

G

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

B
arrie r 1.5h

S
e

r vi c
e  d

u c
t

S
e

rv
i ce  d

u
c t

G

Concrete

B
ric k W

a ll 1 .0
h

Concrete

Rough ground

Wire mesh fence 4.3h

D
r a

inag
e

 ch
a

nn
e

l

B
a

r rie
r 1 .4

h

B
a

rr ie
r 1.4

h

Barrier 1.4h

Hatched -  Loading area

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Cage/guard

Plinth

Drainage channel

Drainage channel

Barrier 1.4h

Barrier 1.4h

Concrete

D
r a

ina
ge

 ch
a

nn
e

l

Palisade fence 2.4h

Gravel

Gravel

Col.

Hatched

Box
Concrete

Hatched

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Wall 0.3h

Barrier 1.2h

Wall 0.3h

Drainage channel

Drainage channel

D
ra

i n
a

g
e

 c
h

a
nn

e
l

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Step/pl inth

B
a

rr
ie

r 
1 .

4
h

B
a

rr
ie

r 
1.

4
h

G

W
a

l l 
0

. 2
h

B
a

rr
i e

r  
1.

1h

W
a

ll  
0.

2
h

B
ar

ri e
r  

1.
2

h

Concrete

Concrete

Markings faded

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

H
/R

 1
. 2

h

Barrier 1.4h

Barrier 1.4h

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Tank

Plinth Plinth

Plinth

Plinth
Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Plinth

Conc.

Safety screen

Drainage channel

D
r a

ina
ge

 ch
a

nn
e

l

Drainage channel

Conc. wall 0.4h

Safety screen 7.0h

Drainage channel

G

Concrete

B
a

rr
ie

r 
1 .

4
h

2.6d tank

H
/R

 1
.2

h

Cage/guard

B
r ick

 w
al l 1.2

h

B
a

r rie
r 1 .4

h

Rendered wall 1.0h

1.2h 0.33w brk 1.0h cor rg ted sheet on top
Corrugated Iro

n 2.2
h

Barrier 1.4h

Hatched -  Loading area

H
/R

 1
.1

h

Hatched

B
a

rr
ie

r  
1 .

4
h

Wall 0.7h

B
arrier 1.4h

Concrete

Col.

P
linth

Elevated platform

B
a

rr ie
r  1. 1

h

Barrier 1.0h

Flat roof

H/R
 1

.0h

E
levated platform

ver t cylndr

Col.Col.

B
r ick  w

all  0.4
h

Flat roof

Flat roof

Hatched

W
a

l l 2
.9

h

I /R
 1

.1
h

B
ri ck  w

a ll  2. 6
h

Shuttering

Corrugated fence 2.3h

B
ri ck

 w
a

l l

Tiled floor

Stone wall 1.9h

B
rick wall 2.4h

Wire mesh 2.0h

Brick wall 2.4h

n ter r 2diam cyl

n ter r 2diam cyl

I /R
 2.6h

Sto
ne wall 0

.8h

B
rick wall 0.5h

B
rick w

all 2.0h

I/R 0.4h

Dra
ina

ge ch
ann

el

I /R
 0.

8h

2.0d cyl

2.0d cyl

Barrie
r 1

.4
h

Bric
k 

wall
 2.

3h

Hatched

Car obstruction

Tap

B
rick wall 1.8h

W
ire m

esh 2.0h

W
all 0

.1h

I /R
 3.0h

I/R 3.0
h

Markings faded

W
a

l l  
0

. 2
h

B
a

rr
i e

r  
1.

1
h

B
/W

 &
 W

/ M
 2

.1
h

gas

gas

in rec -  disabled anabl

ext

exnd edge 1.2 -  g lly at end

Pipe

P
ip

e
Plinth

B
a

rr
ie

r  
1.

5
h

7

6

5

4

Barrier 1.2h

Por takabin

Metal barrier 1.5h

O
H

 p
i p

e

O
ve

rh
e a

d
 p

i p
e

Plant

Barrie
r 1

.5h

Vents

Pipe

Pipe

Barrier 1.4h

B
ri

ck
 w

al
l 1

. 3
h

Brick wall 1.2h

Machinery

Plant

Barrel  storage area

Barrie
r 1

.5h

PVC surface

B
arrier 1.5h

Meta
l b

arrie
r 1

.5h

Shower

Barrie
r 1

.5h

Brick wall 1.5

Shower

Drainage channel

I/R
 1.

1h

Col.

E
xtents of metal stairs

C
onc

.

Brick wall 1.5

Plant

B
ri

ck
 w

al
l 1

.3
h

S
e

r vic
e d

u
c

t

B
rick  w

all

B
rick  w

all

B
rick  w

all

I/R
 1.

1h

Col.

Col.

C
onc.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Conc.

Conc.

C
onc.

Col.

Col.

Col.

Col.

P/R 2.0h

P/R 2.0h

P
/R

 2
.0

h

Iron barrier 1.5h

Hatched

Col.

Iron barrier 1.6h

Iron Barrier 0.6h

W
ire

 m
es

h 
fe

nc
e 

5 .
6h

8

Ver tical  Cylinder 2.7diam

Tank
0.93h blk xt 0.25 inside of ss r tn to mesh 0.92

Barrier 1.0h

Tank

Palisade fence 2.4h

F
la

t r
o

o
f

Kerb stones laid flat

Col.

Barrier/cable carrier 1.2hConcrete

C/L B/W
 2.6h

Barrier 1.2h

4

3

2

5

Iron barrier 1.5h

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

FH

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

C/L B/W 2.6h

C/L B/W 2.6h

C/L B/W 2.6h

C
/L  B

/W
 2.6h

C
/L

 B
/W

 2 .2
h

B
r ick  W

a ll 1. 0
h

B
rick

 W
a ll 1 .0 h

Ver tical  Cylinder 2.7diam

Iron Barrier 0.6h

9

7

6

Ladder

Dra
ina

ge C
hann

el

Tiled

Grit

Canop
y

Cable

Pipe

Bric
k S

et t
s

CR

Gas Pipe

Gate Post

Gate Post

Service duct

Barrie
r 0

.7
h

Skip

CR

Beam

M
etal cage

 2.0h

Grit

W
ood re taining wa ll 0.4h

Palisade fence 3.0h

M
et

al
 m

es
h 

fe
nc

e
 3

.0
h

Extent of stored materials

Skip

Ba
rrier 1.2h

Post

Ladder

Brick W
all 0.

7h

B
rick W

all 0.4
h

Soil

Grit

Soil

W
al

l 0
.1

5h
 F

en
c

e 
2

.0
h

bl 0.1 inw

rtrn

Telecoms Juncion Box

B
l o

ck
 W

al
l 0

.9
h

Access Ramp

rtrn

rtrn-canopy

canopy

poor ang le

Handrail 1.0h

Elec. Box

2x30mm Pipes

30mm Pipe

Barrier Unit

CR

Jct.Box

Pipe

Pipe

pipe

rtrn

Block W
all 2.0h

Brains Sign

I/R 2.2h

Bric
k W

all 0
. 4

h

I /R
 0.5h

W
ir e M

esh

Fl at  roof

Fl at roof

Fla
t ro

of

towers

Top of stack

16

Por takabin

W/M 5.5h

Melat barrier 1.6h

Retainin
g sto

ne wall

P/R 2.
0h

Brick
 wall 

1.2
h

B
ri

ck
 w

al
l 1

.3
h

B
ar

rie
r 

1.
2

h

B
a

rr
ie

r 
1.

2
h

I/R 1.0h

Asphalt

G

G

Asphalt

Asphalt

Tact.

Tact.

BT

Paved

Paved

Asphalt

Telecoms Juncion Box

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

I /R
 0

.5
h

I /R 0.5h

Asphalt

Block paviors

Block paviors

Asphalt

Tactile

Paved

Block Paviors

Block Paviors

Block Paviors

Block Paviors

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Conc.

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Tactile Paving

PavedBl
oc

k 
pa

vio
rs

Block paviors

Paved

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

G

FH

Asphalt

Asphalt

Tactile Paving

B
lo

c k P
a

ving

Paved

Paved

Asphalt

Concrete

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Concrete

Pipe

Pipe

C
oncrete

C
oncrete

Pipe

Block Paviors

G

G

Soil

G

B
rick W

all 0.4
h

B
rick W

all 0.4
h

G

Block pavio
rs

Block pavio
rs

Block pavio
rs

Block paviors

G

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Threshold

Eaves

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

RidgeRidge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

VP

VP

SP

Bol.
Bol.

Bol.
Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

GG

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

Bol.

TV

TV

TV

TP

TP

TP

TP

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

UL

UL

UL

UL

UL UL UL
UL

Mkr.

Mkr.

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

Post

SC

SC

SC

SC
SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SCSC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SC

SCSC

SC

SC

SC
SC

SC

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP
DP

DP

DP
DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP
DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP
DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

RE

GC

GC

GC

GC

GC

GC

Trial pit

7
90211

4
90208

3
90207

5
90209

1
90210

Existing BRAINS Chimney

Phase 1 Boundary Line 

(Site Area 21178 m²)

1
90205

1.
90205

2.
90205

2
90205

3
90205

4
90205

Cardiff Central Station

Existing BRAINS 

Brewhouse

Finish TBC by 

Landscape 
Architect

Refer to 

Landscape 
Architects Plan 

for Layout

PROJECT ORIGIN. VOLUME LEVEL TYPE DISCIP. NUMBER

SUITABILITY :

REVISION:

DOCUMENTATION - SIGN-OFF

A - Fit for construction

B - Fit for construction, with comments

ARCHIVE

AB - As Built

FC - Final Construction

* For internal pre-issue usage only.

** For model file usage only.

DRAWN BY :

JOB NO : SCALE :

DATE :

DRAWING TITLE :

PROJECT TITLE :

SUITABILITY NUMBER KEY:

WIP

S0 - Work in Progress*

SHARED

S1 - Fit for co-ordination**

S2 - Fit for information

S3 - Fit for internal review and comment

S4 - Fit for construction approval

DOCUMENTATION

D1 - Fit for costing

D2 - Fit for tender

D3 - Fit for contractor design

D4 - Fit for manufacture/ procurement

Rio Cardiff 

21a Allensbank Road 

Cardiff CF14 3PN

+44 (0)29 2025 0066

studio@rioarchitects.com

www.rioarchitects.com

@rioarchitects

Rio London 

19  21 Hatton Garden

London EC1N 8BA

+44 (0)20 2691 7565

Architecture Sustainability Interiors Visualisation

Notes:

© Rio Architects Ltd. 

This drawing is copyright and must not be reproduced or disclosed to third parties without the prior written 

consent of Rio Architects Ltd.

Do not scale this drawing.  Responsibility is not accepted by Rio Architects Ltd for errors made by others 

during the printing or scaling of this drawing.  Use only written dimensions.  It is the contractor's 

responsibility to verify all dimensions before commencing any work.  Any discrepancies are to be notified in 

writing to Rio Architects Ltd immediately.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other relevant project drawings, specifications and 

schedules prepared by Rio Architects Ltd and any other relevant consultants, specialists or subcontractors.

CDM notes are provided to assist the contractor in managing residual hazards identified during the design 

stage.  Any such notes do not relieve the contractor of his duties and he must provide a safe system of work 

based on method statements, risk assessments etc.

CHECKED BY: APPROVED BY :

STATUS:

4

 1 : 500 @ A1

0305 RIO 00 XX DR A 90012

S2

SRS

0305

06/12/17

Proposed Site Plan

Central Quay Phase 1

Site

JY RR

PLANNING

N

0 25 50 m

Site Levels Data

FFL for the Marketplace 8.00 AOD

FFL for the M.S.C.P. 7.76 AOD

Public Realm Design

Please refer to Landscape 

Architects
drawings for public realm design 

and specification

R
iver T

aff

Rev Description Rev'd Chk'd Date

1 Buildings updated. General updates. SRS JY 21.12.17

2 Planning Issue SRS CT 31.01.18

3 MSCP Revised following NR PAC

Response

JY CT 19.03.18

4 Car park layout + landscape updated EL CT 27.03.18

38



39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Applications decided by Delegated Powers between 01/06/2018 and 29/06/2018 

Total Count of Applications: 203

ADAM

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01008/DCH 30/04/2018  38 TrueBurridge 07/06/2018ENCLOSURE TO FIRST FLOOR 

STAIRCASE TO SIDE

27 PIERCEFIELD PLACE, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 0LD

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00768/MJR 23/04/2018  45 TrueCardiff and Vale 

University Health Board

07/06/2018CHANGE OF USE TO A CAFE, 

LIBRARY AND MEETING SPACE. 

ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS INCLUDING NEW 

PAVING, RAILINGS, AIR 

CONDITIONING PLANT WITH 

ASSOCIATED OPENINGS INTO THE 

BUILDING AND REPLACEMENT OF 

PART OF THE FLAT ROOF.

CARDIFF ROYAL 

INFIRMARY, NEWPORT 

ROAD, ADAMSDOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF24 0SZ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00655/MNR 19/03/2018  101 FalseStrategic Estates, 

Cardiff County Council

28/06/2018EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO 

INCLUDE NEW DOOR, PLAY AREA, 

ROOF LIGHT, SUN PIPES, ERECTION 

OF NEW FENCE, INSTALLATION OF 

NEW SURFACE TREATMENTS, 

RAISED PLANTERS, BUG HOTEL AND 

BIN STORE

ADAMSDOWN 

COMMUNITY HALL, METAL 

STREET, ADAMSDOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF24 0LZ

Permission 

be granted

A
genda Item

 6



BUTE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00989/MJR 27/04/2018  56 TrueSchroders UK Real 

Estate Fund

22/06/2018COMPREHENSIVE IMPROVEMENTS 

TO THE PUBLIC REALM AND 

EXTERNAL APPEARANCE

MERMAID QUAY, STUART 

STREET, CARDIFF BAY

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

A/18/00049/MNR 02/05/2018  51 TrueSchroders UK Real 

Estate Fund

22/06/2018SIGNAGE MERMAID QUAY, STUART 

STREET, CARDIFF BAY

Permission 

be granted

18/00912/MNR 20/04/2018  69 FalseAssociated British Ports 28/06/2018RELOCATION OF PORTABLE UNITS LAND NORTH OF 

TYNESIDE ROAD, 

CARDIFF BAY

Permission 

be granted

CAER

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00383/MNR 19/02/2018  112 FalseWills 11/06/2018REMOVAL OF SIDE OUTHOUSE AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF THREE 

BEDROOM ATTACHED RESIDENTIAL 

UNIT WITH NEW PARKING SPACE TO 

EXISITING PROPERTY

PART OF LAND AT 6 

CYNTWELL CRESCENT, 

CAERAU, CARDIFF, CF5 

5QG

Permission 

be granted

18/00902/MNR 23/04/2018  56 TrueHobbs 18/06/2018REMOVAL OF EXISTING GARAGE & 

OUTHOUSE TO SIDE OF NO 60 WITH 

CONSTRUCTION OF NEW 2 NO BED 

ATTACHED DWELLING ON LAND TO 

THE SIDE

PART OF LAND AT 60 

HEOL POYSTON, 

CAERAU, CARDIFF, CF5 

5LY

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/00975/MNR 03/05/2018  50 TrueHorizons Educare 22/06/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM A DWELLING 

(C3) TO A CARE HOME (C2) WITH A 

SELF CONTAINED MAISONETTE

NEW HOUSE FARM, HEOL 

TRELAI, CAERAU, 

CARDIFF, CF5 5PH

Permission 

be granted



18/01112/MNR 17/05/2018  33 TrueFowler 19/06/2018CHANGE OF USE OF UNITS 3 & 5 

FIRST FLOOR FROM B1 (A) TO D1 TO 

PROVIDE AESTHETIC TREATMENTS 

IN THE PREMISES

UNITS 3 AND 5, HOMES 

HOUSE, 253 COWBRIDGE 

ROAD WEST, CAERAU, 

CARDIFF, CF5 5TD

Permission 

be granted

CANT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01027/DCH 01/05/2018  59 FalseDe Freitas 29/06/2018VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 

(APPROVED PLANS) OF 

16/02036/DCH

5 BROAD STREET, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF11 

8BY

Permission 

be granted

18/01090/DCH 08/05/2018  52 TrueRussell-Jones 29/06/2018SINGLE STOREY SIDE RETURN 

EXTENSION

23 SYR DAVID'S AVENUE, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF5 

1GH

Permission 

be granted

18/01258/DCH 29/05/2018  21 TrueEvans 19/06/2018THE PROPOSED LOFT CONVERSION 

WITH REAR FACING DORMER

23 PRESWYLFA STREET, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF5 

1FS

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00720/MNR 26/03/2018  78 FalseHalai 12/06/2018PROPOSED 4 BEDROOM DWELLING 

HOUSE WITHIN THE CURTILAGE OF 

7 BROADACRES LECKWITH CARDIFF 

CF11 8DD (AMENDMENT TO THE 3 

BEDROOM DESIGN APPROVED 

UNDER PLANNING PERMISSION 

14/001133/DCO)

PROPOSED NEW 

DWELLING ON LAND AT 7, 

BROADACRES, CANTON

Permission 

be granted

18/00608/MNR 16/04/2018  52 TrueHussain 07/06/2018FIRST & SECOND FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSIONS, REAR DORMERS AND 

CONVERSION TO FOUR FLATS + 

GROUND FLOOR HOT FOOD 

TAKEAWAY & RESTAURANT WITH 

NEW SHOP-FRONT.

318-320 COWBRIDGE 

ROAD EAST, CANTON, 

CARDIFF, CF5 1HD

Permission 

be granted



18/00871/MNR 13/04/2018  49 TrueBwydiful 01/06/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM A1 (SHOPS) 

TO A3 (RESTAURANT) FOR THE 

GROUND FLOOR RETAIL UNIT

589A COWBRIDGE ROAD 

EAST, CANTON, CARDIFF, 

CF5 1BE

Permission 

be granted

18/01057/MNR 22/05/2018  36 TrueLawrence 27/06/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM A SINGLE 

FAMILY DWELLING TO CREATE TWO 

NEW INDIVIDUAL FLATS

385 COWBRIDGE ROAD 

EAST, CANTON, CARDIFF, 

CF5 1JG

Permission 

be granted

18/00863/MNR 09/05/2018  30 Truenodwell 08/06/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM DWELLING 

HOUSE TO HOUSE IN MULTIPLE 

OCCUPANCY MAXIMUM OF 7 

OCCUPANTS

562 COWBRIDGE ROAD 

EAST, CANTON, CARDIFF, 

CF5 1BP

Permission 

be granted

18/01038/MNR 02/05/2018  36 TrueHLM Investment Cardiff 

Ltd

07/06/2018CONVERSION OF FIRST AND 

SECOND FLOOR OFFICES TO THREE 

NUMBER OF FLATS

364A COWBRIDGE ROAD 

EAST, CANTON, CARDIFF, 

CF5 1HE

Permission 

be granted

CATH

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00969/DCH 25/04/2018  41 TrueBeere 05/06/20182 STOREY REAR EXTENSION, REAR 

DORMER TO EXISTING C4 HMO 

CREATING 6 BEDROOMS

34 RHYMNEY STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4DF

Permission 

be granted

18/01070/DCH 04/05/2018  49 TrueMorris 22/06/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION 

PLUS REAR DORMER LOFT 

CONVERSION AND VELUX TO FRONT 

ROOF TO EXISTING C4 HOUSE IN 

MULTIPLE OCCUPATION

12 ALEXANDER STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4NT

Permission 

be granted

18/01086/DCH 08/05/2018  52 TrueKowsor 29/06/2018RETENTION OF FIRST FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSION WITH DESIGN 

ALTERATIONS

27 COLUM ROAD, 

CATHAYS PARK

Permission 

be granted

18/01381/DCH 11/06/2018  16 TrueYapp 27/06/2018REAR DORMER SET BACK 300mm 

FROM ORIGINAL MAIN HOUSE WALL 

AND VELUX ROOF LIGHT TO FRONT 

NOT EXCEEDING 150mm ABOVE 

ROOF PLANE

15 LETTY STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4EJ

Permission 

be granted



18/01144/DCH 23/05/2018  35 TrueIllyas 27/06/2018RETENTION OF GROUND & FIRST 

FLOOR REAR EXTENSION PLUS 

REAR HIP TO GABLE DORMER LOFT 

CONVERSION AND VELUX TO FRONT 

ROOF TO EXISTING C4 HMO 

CREATING SIX BEDROOMS

206 RHYMNEY STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4DJ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

17/02325/MJR 29/09/2017  265 FalseWatkin Jones 21/06/2018VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 4 

(EXTERNAL MATERIALS), 5 

(ARCHITECTURAL DETAILING) AND 

23 (LANDSCAPING) OF 15/02820/MJR

LAND BOUND BY CUSTOM 

HOUSE STREET, BUTE 

STREET AND HOPE 

STREET, CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

18/01216/MJR 24/05/2018  18 TrueRightacres Property 

Company Limited

11/06/2018TO REDUCE THE NUMBER OF CYCLE 

PARKING SPACES FROM 146 TO 110 

AND AMEND THE SEATING AREA 

DESIGN - PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 

UNDER 16/02490/MJR

TWO CENTRAL SQUARE, 

CENTRAL SQUARE, CITY 

CENTRE

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00999/MNR 01/05/2018  41 TrueHuyen 11/06/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM A1 TO A3 28-30 ROYAL ARCADE, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 1AE

Permission 

be granted

17/02731/MNR 21/11/2017  199 Falsec/o Agent 08/06/2018CONVERSION AND EXTENSION OF 

37-39 COLUM ROAD FROM 2 NO. 

HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION 

(CLASS C4 & SUI GENERIS) TO 12 

STUDENT ACCOMMODATION UNITS 

INCLUDING A GROUND AND FIRST 

FLOOR REAR EXTENSION AND A 

REAR DORMER EXTENSION.

37-39 COLUM ROAD, 

CATHAYS PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3EE

Permission 

be granted



18/00690/MNR 29/03/2018  64 False3D Property 

Investments Ltd

01/06/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM USE CLASS 

B1 (BUSINESS) TO USE CLASS D1 

(NON-RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTIONS) 

TO PROVIDE A DAY CARE FACILITY 

FOR UP TO 65 CHILDREN

7 ST ANDREW'S 

CRESCENT, CATHAYS 

PARK, CARDIFF, CF10 3DA

Permission 

be granted

18/00538/MNR 13/03/2018  99 FalseSouth Wales Area 

Meeting (Religious 

Society of Friends)

20/06/2018REMODELLING AND EXTENSION OF 

FACILITIES AT 'THE FRIENDS 

MEETING HOUSE', 43 CHARLES 

STREET, CARDIFF

CARDIFF QUAKER 

MEETING HOUSE, 43 

CHARLES STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

2GB

Permission 

be granted

18/00959/MNR 24/04/2018  59 FalseMr Ali Alzahid 22/06/2018CONVERSION OF PROPERTY WITH 

FOUR BEDROOMS INTO 4 ONE BED 

ROOM SELF CONTAINED FLATS 

WITH SINGLE STOREY AND FIRST 

FLOOR REAR EXTENSIONS AND 

LOFT CONVERSION WIHT REAR 

DORMER

12 MAY STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4EW

Permission 

be granted

18/00899/MNR 26/04/2018  56 TrueAhmed 21/06/2018CONVERSION OF HOUSE TO 2 FLATS 

WITH FIRST FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSION AND GROUND FLOOR 

REAR EXTENSION & REAR DORMER

87 CRWYS ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4NF

Permission 

be granted

18/01149/MNR 08/05/2018  42 TrueOrmonde 19/06/2018CONVERSION TO 2 FLATS 2 BRITHDIR STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4LG

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00048/MNR 25/04/2018  55 TrueCardiff University 19/06/2018SIGNAGE TWO CENTRAL SQUARE, 

CENTRAL SQUARE, CITY 

CENTRE

Permission 

be granted

18/01019/MNR 10/05/2018  50 TrueMilan 29/06/2018REMOVAL OF CONDITION 5 (NO 

SALE OF HOT FOOD FOR 

CONSUMPTION OFF THE PREMISES) 

OF 09/00859/C  - TO ALLOW THE 

SALE OF HOT FOOD FOR 

CONSUMPTION OFF THE PREMISES.

100 NORTH ROAD, 

BLACKWEIR, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3DZ

Permission 

be granted

18/00872/MNR 20/04/2018  69 FalseI Want to Ride My Bike 

Ltd

28/06/2018VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 OF 

15/01328/MNR PREVIOUSLY AGREED 

UNDER 14/02979/MNR; TO EXTEND 

HOURS OF OPENING FROM 08:00 TO 

22:00 AT 26 PARK PLACE, CATHAYS, 

CARDIFF, CF10 3BA

GROUND FLOOR 

COMMERCIAL UNIT, 26 

PARK PLACE, CATHAYS 

PARK, CARDIFF, CF10 3BA

Permission 

be granted

18/00898/MNR 08/05/2018  51 TrueAslam 28/06/2018CONVERSION TO 3 FLATS WITH 

GROUND AND FIRST FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSIONS

130 WOODVILLE ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4EE

Permission 

be granted



18/01050/MNR 08/05/2018  50 TrueLondon Women's Clinic 27/06/2018CHANGE OF USE OF 14 WINDSOR 

PLACE FROM LAST USE AS A2 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO D1 

CLINIC

14-15 WINDSOR PLACE, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3BY

Permission 

be granted

18/01051/MNR 08/05/2018  50 TrueLondon Women's Clinic 27/06/2018FORMATION OF 2NO. OPENINGS 

BETWEEN 14 AND 15 WINDSOR 

PLACE, INSERTION OF STEPS AT 

WEST (REAR) OPENING AND 

CREATION OF PLATFORM AND 

INSTALLATION OF SHORT RISE 

PLATFORM LIFT AT EAST (FRONT) 

OPENING TO OVERCOME CHANGE 

OF LEVEL BETWEEN BUILDINGS. 

REMOVAL OF PARTITION BETWEEN 

LOBBY AND RECEPTION AND 

BETWEEN OFFICE 1 AND OFFICE 2 

IN 14 WINDSOR PLACE. 

CONVERSION OF GROUND FLOOR 

KITCHEN TO WC IN 15 WINDSOR 

PLACE.

14-15 WINDSOR PLACE, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3BY

Permission 

be granted

18/01005/MNR 01/05/2018  52 TrueCastle Stone Property 22/06/2018EXTENSION OF THE GROUND 

FLOOR ACCOMMODATION AND 

CHANGE OF USE TO A3 FOR A 

RESTAURANT. CREATION OF TWO 

FLATS ABOVE BY CONSTRUCTION 

OF A NEW ROOF DORMER

101A CRWYS ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4NF

Permission 

be granted

16/00202/MNR 29/01/2016  879 FalseS&A 

PROPERTIES(SOUTH 

WALES)LTD

26/06/2018CONVERSION TO 4 FLATS WITH 

NEW SHOP FRONT TO SHOP AND 

ROOFLIGHTS TO REAR

31 ST MARY STREET, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 1AB

Permission 

be granted

18/01295/MNR 04/06/2018  8 TrueSD Property Ltd 12/06/2018INSTALLATION OF 9 TELESCOPIC 

ANTI-RAM BOLLARDS

FLANNELS, LANDMARK 

PLACE, CHURCHILL WAY, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 2HS

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00050/MNR 04/05/2018  32 TrueWPC Cardiff 18-8 B.V. 05/06/20182 SIGNS TO DISPLAY THE NAME OF 

THE BUILDING 'CROWN PLACE'

CROWN PLACE, 1-6 ST 

ANDREW'S PLACE, 

CATHAYS PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3BE

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00053/MNR 11/05/2018  25 TrueYankee Candle 05/06/2018STENCIL CUT ALUMINIUM 

POWDERCOATED LED LIGHT BOX 

FITTED TO EXISTING FASCIA

5 ST DAVID'S DEWI SANT, 

GRAND ARCADE, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

2ER

Permission 

be granted



A/18/00045/MNR 26/04/2018  40 TrueThe Watkin Jones 

Group

05/06/2018HORIZONTAL FASCIA SIGN IN 

ANODISED ALIMINIUM

BRIDGE STREET 

EXCHANGE, BRIDGE 

STREET, CITY CENTRE

Permission 

be granted

18/00980/MNR 10/05/2018  28 TrueS.A.Brains & Co ltd 07/06/2018PROPOSED NEW ROOF 

EXTRACTION

THE YARD, 42-43 ST MARY 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1AD

Permission 

be granted

18/01079/MNR 14/05/2018  39 TrueKarseras 22/06/2018DEMOLITION OF OUT-BUILDING & 

CONSTRUCTION OF TWO BEDROOM 

ANNEX MAISONETTE, REAR 

DORMER TO MAIN ROOF AND MINOR 

EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS

127 CATHAYS TERRACE, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4HU

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01198/MNR 21/05/2018  29 TrueExitus Escape Rooms 

Limited

19/06/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM OFFICES TO 

D2 LEISURE - ESCAPE ROOMS

FORMER MANPOWER, 90 

QUEEN STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

2GR

Permission 

be granted

18/01009/MNR 18/05/2018  32 TrueCrossman 19/06/2018CONVERTED SHIPPING 

CONTAINERS TO ACT AS RETAIL 

UNITS FOR STADIUM EVENTS. 

MOVEABLE UNITS

PRINCIPALITY STADIUM, 

WESTGATE STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1NS

Permission 

be granted

18/01314/MNR 11/06/2018  3 TrueIslam 14/06/2018SHOP FRONT ALTERATION 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED UNDER 

17/01917/MNR

49 SALISBURY ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4AB

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00051/MNR 04/05/2018  40 TrueAmgueddfa Cymru - 

National Museum 

Wales

13/06/2018FOUR FABRIC BANNERS INSTALLED 

AT FRONT OF BUILDING TO 

PROMOTE FREE TEMPORARY 

EXHIBITION "KIZUNA: JAPAN, WALES, 

DESIGN".

NATIONAL MUSEUM AND 

GALLERY OF WALES, 

GORSEDD GARDENS 

ROAD, CATHAYS PARK, 

CARDIFF, CF10 3NP

Permission 

be granted

18/01193/MNR 22/05/2018  36 TrueBeere 27/06/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION, 

REAR DORMER AND CONVERSION 

INTO 2 FLATS.

18 LLANTRISANT STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4JB

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00057/MNR 25/05/2018  31 TrueTindale 25/06/2018SIGNAGE 8 ST DAVID'S DEWI SANT, 

HAYES ARCADE, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

2EJ

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00061/MNR 04/06/2018  21 TrueIslam 25/06/2018SIGNAGE 49 SALISBURY ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4AB

Permission 

be granted

CRE



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00984/DCH 01/05/2018  59 FalseGaffney 29/06/2018PROPOSED REAR EXTENSION TO 

FORM SUNROOM

3 THE GROVE, CARDIFF 

ROAD, CREIGIAU, 

CARDIFF, CF15 9NL

Permission 

be granted

18/00942/DCH 23/04/2018  51 TrueLewis 13/06/2018SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

BEDROOM AT REAR OF DWELLING

3 COURT COTTAGES, 

MICHAELSTON ROAD, ST 

FAGANS, CARDIFF, CF5 

6EN

Permission 

be granted

18/01010/DCH 30/04/2018  38 TrueWhite 07/06/2018CONSTRUCTION OF GARAGE IN 

REAR GARDEN

22 DENISON WAY, ST 

FAGANS, CARDIFF, CF5 

4SF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00314/MJR 21/02/2018  121 FalseRedrow Homes South 

Wales

22/06/2018APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS 

(APPEARANCE, SCALE, LAYOUT, 

LANDSCAPING AND NON - 

STRATEGIC ACCESS) FOR 

INFRASTRUCTURE WORKS SERVING 

PHASE 1F OF THE LAND SOUTH OF 

PENTREBANE ROAD OUTLINE 

PERMISSION (14/02188/MJR).

LAND SOUTH OF 

PENTREBANE ROAD, 

CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

18/01239/MJR 25/05/2018  28 TrueTrustees of St Fagans 

No 1 & 2 Trust and 

Trustees of St Fagans 

22/06/2018AMENDMENT TO THE WORDING OF 

CONDITION 40 OF 14/02733/MJR 

(LISTED BUILDINGS PENTREBANE 

FARM) TO ADDRESS THE NEED FOR 

FURTHER LISTED BUILDING 

CONSENT SUBMISSIONS AS PART 

OF THE IMPLEMENTATION 

PROGRAMME AND ECOLOGICAL 

ASSESSMENT

NORTH WEST CARDIFF Permission 

be granted



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00518/MNR 13/03/2018  98 FalseL. F. Evans 19/06/2018CONSTRUCT A NEW ACCESS TRACK 

OFF PRIVATE LANE TO EXISTING 

FARMYARD OVER IMPROVED LAND 

TO FACILITATE MODERN 

AGRICULTURAL VEHICULAR. 

DEMOLISH DILAPIDATED FARM 

BUILDINGS (PART CONCRETE 

BLOCK & ZINC CLADDING) AND 

ERECT AGRICULTURAL BUILDING 

REMOVED FROM ANOTHER 

LOCATION OFF PLYMOUTH ESTATE. 

ALSO EXTEND EXISTING YARD TO 

REDUCE SOIL EROSION TO FRONT 

OF BUILDING TO EASE MODERN 

MACHINERY MOVEMENTS. USE 

BUILDING TO HOUSE MACHINERY

LAND PART OF TREWEN 

FARM, RHYDLAFER, OFF 

LLANTRISANT ROAD

Permission 

be granted

18/00982/MNR 27/04/2018  35 TrueParachutes Childcare 

Ltd

01/06/2018INSERTION OF NEW WINDOWS AND 

DOORS INTO EXISTING ELEVATIONS 

AND CONSTRUCTION OF 

PERIMETER FENCE

UNIT 1 & 2, RHYDLAFAR 

DRIVE, ST FAGANS, 

CARDIFF, CF5 6HU

Permission 

be granted

CYNC

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00970/DCH 25/04/2018  47 TrueThomas 11/06/2018GROUND FLOOR SIDE EXTENSION 95 OGWEN DRIVE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6LJ

Permission 

be granted

18/00992/DCH 27/04/2018  52 TrueYoung 18/06/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE. 

ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING 

GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION 

AND A SINGLE STOREY SIDE 

EXTENSION.

10 HOLLYBUSH ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6TA

Permission 

be granted



18/00939/DCH 25/04/2018  56 TrueLewis 20/06/2018TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 

INCLUDING RAISING RIDGE & 

ADDITION OF SIDE DORMER FOR 

LOFT CONVERSION

33 LLYSWEN ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6NH

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

17/02809/DCH 14/12/2017  197 FalseMiller 29/06/2018SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

REAR AND DORMER EXTENSION

32 WINDERMERE 

AVENUE, ROATH PARK, 

CARDIFF, CF23 5PR

Permission 

be granted

18/00966/DCH 01/05/2018  56 TrueHornung 26/06/2018NEW DETACHED GARAGE 5 LLANGORSE ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6PE

Permission 

be granted

18/01242/DCH 24/05/2018  18 TrueMendonca 11/06/2018ADDITION OF 1 NO. OBSCURED 

GLASS WINDOW TO SIDE 

ELEVATION PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 

UNDER 17/02575/DCH

6 CEFN COED AVENUE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6HE

Permission 

be granted

18/01099/DCH 16/05/2018  35 TrueM & M Solicitors 20/06/2018SINGLE STOREY AND TWO STOREY 

REAR EXTENSIONS LOFT 

CONVERSION WITH REAR DORMER 

AND CHANGE OF PITCHED ROOF TO 

A GABLE END

194 CYNCOED ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6BQ

Permission 

be granted

18/01191/DCH 21/05/2018  37 TrueShen 27/06/2018TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSIONS 10 BRYN-GWYN ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6PQ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00834/MNR 19/04/2018  56 TruePoole 14/06/2018NEW DWELLING ON INFILL SITE 

ADJACENT TO EXISTING HOUSE AT 

13 CEFN COED ROAD

13 CEFN COED ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6AN

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/00417/MNR 23/02/2018  98 FalseLloyd 01/06/2018CONSTRUCTION OF ELEVATED 

GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION TO 

REAR, TO EXISTING OPTHALMIC 

PREMISES /BUSINESS

R E LLOYD 

OPTOMETRISTS, 310 

HEATHWOOD ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF14 4HT

Permission 

be granted

ELY



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01267/DCH 30/05/2018  30 TrueJohansen 29/06/2018TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION TO 

PROVIDE NEW DINING ROOM AND 

ADDITIONAL BEDROOM

15 NOTTAGE ROAD, ELY, 

CARDIFF, CF5 5DF

Permission 

be granted

FAIR

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00646/DCH 21/03/2018  84 FalseJones 13/06/2018SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND REAR 

EXTENSION INCORPORATING WET, 

UTILITY ROOM, KITCHEN AND SUN 

LOUNGE AREAS AND EXTENDED 

REAR PATIO

11 BWLCH ROAD, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3BX

Permission 

be granted

18/01158/DCH 16/05/2018  22 TrueStephens 07/06/2018TO CHANGE THE FINISHING 

MATERIALS OF THE EXTENSION 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED FROM 

FACING BRICK TO RENDER.

17 CEDAR GROVE, 

PENTREBANE, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3RR

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00163/MNR 26/01/2018  133 FalseGillespie 08/06/2018GROUND & FIRST FLOOR SIDE / 

REAR EXTENSION AND 

CONVERSION OF THREE FLATS

115 ELY ROAD, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3AB

Permission 

be granted

18/01004/MNR 10/05/2018  47 TrueVision 21 (Cyfle Cynru) 26/06/2018EXTENSION OF EXISTING GEGIN 

FACH CAFE, PART OF SBECTRWM 

COMMUNITY CENTRE

COMMUNITY CENTRE, 

BWLCH ROAD, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3EF

Permission 

be granted

GABA



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00570/DCH 26/04/2018  42 TrueDTB Design 07/06/2018FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSION, 2 & 

SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 

PLUS REAR DORMER LOFT 

CONVERSION AND FRONT GABLE.

3 PARKFIELD PLACE, 

MAINDY, CARDIFF, CF14 

3AR

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01319/MJR 06/06/2018  12 TrueWates Residential 18/06/2018PROPOSED REPLACEMENT OF 

EXISTING BRICK BOUNDARY WALL 

TO NORTH ROAD, WITH NEW 1.8M 

TALL METAL RAILINGS - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 17/01691/MJR

BRIARDENE, NORTH 

ROAD, GABALFA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 3BL

Permission 

be granted

GRAN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00987/DCH 27/04/2018  41 TrueMcNish 07/06/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY SIDE 

EXTENSION TO REAR OF PROPERTY

62 MERCHES GARDENS, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6RE

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01315/MJR 12/06/2018  10 TrueBayscape Limited 22/06/2018ALTER CONDITIONS 5 AND 6 OF 

RESERVED MATTERS APPROVAL 

15/01463/MJR TO ALLOW THE 

OCCUPATION OF THE RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS WITHIN THE EASTERLY 

BUILDING (WHITEWATER HOUSE) 

PRIOR TO THE COMPLETION OF THE 

HIGHWAY WORKS UNDER SECTION 

278 OF THE HIGHWAYS ACT 1980

BAYSCAPE, CARDIFF 

MARINE, WATKISS WAY, 

GRANGETOWN, CF11 0SF

Permission 

be granted

18/01399/MJR 12/06/2018  10 TrueBayscape Limited 22/06/2018ALTER CONDITION 17 (LOADING, 

UNLOADING, PARKING OF 

VEHICLES) TO ALLOW THE 

OCCUPATION OF THE  RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS WITHIN THE EASTERLY 

BUILDING (WHITEWATER HOUSE) 

PRIOR TO THE COMPLETION OF THE 

HIGHWAY WORKS UNDER SECTION 

278 OF THE HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED UNDER 

13/02547/DCI

BAYSCAPE, CARDIFF 

MARINE, WATKISS WAY, 

GRANGETOWN, CF11 0SF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00853/MNR 18/04/2018  56 TrueIslamic and Cultural 

Centre

13/06/2018SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND FIRST 

FLOOR REAR EXTNSIONS WITH 

EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS

27-31 CLARE ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6QP

Permission 

be granted

18/00605/MNR 16/03/2018  84 FalseUK Property Fund C/O 

THRE

08/06/2018DRIVE THROUGH ROAD 

IMPROVEMENT WORKS AND 

ASSOCIATED DRAINAGE

STARBUCKS COFFEE, 

DUNLEAVY DRIVE, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 0SR

Permission 

be granted

18/01049/MNR 03/05/2018  56 TrueThe Marine & Property 

Group Limited

28/06/2018USE OF THE LAND FOR THE 

STORAGE OF BOATS

CARDIFF MARINE 

VILLAGE, PENARTH 

ROAD, LECKWITH, 

CARDIFF, CF11 8TU

Permission 

be granted



18/01067/MNR 10/05/2018  34 TrueSytner Group 13/06/2018SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO THE 

COSMETIC REPAIR BUILDING. NEW 

EXTENSION AREA 165 M2. 

EXTENSION MATERIALS TO MATCH 

EXISTING BUILDING. DEMOLITION 

AREA TO THE INDUSTRIAL BUILDING 

TO BE REDUCED BY 97 M2. ADD ONE 

NUMBER MOT AREA. FORM NEW 

GABLE END WITH MATERIALS TO 

MATCH EXISTING. NEW AREA OF 

THE BUILDING TO BE 999 M2 - 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED UNDER 

15/02972/MNR

FORMER MACDONALDS 

AND KISMET PARK, 

PENARTH ROAD, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01055/MNR 09/05/2018  33 TrueStarburst (UK) Limited 11/06/2018CHANGE USE FORM USE CLASS D2 

TO B1, B2 AND B8

UNIT 3A, FREEMANS 

PARC, PENARTH ROAD, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8EQ

Permission 

be granted

HEAT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00890/DCH 19/04/2018  71 FalsePEARSON 29/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

TO DWELLING, SINGLE STOREY 

GARDEN BUILDING AND 

DEMOLITION OF GARAGE

3 ST ALBAN AVENUE, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

4AS

Permission 

be granted

18/00751/DCH 04/04/2018  84 FalseTaylor 27/06/2018TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO THE 

SIDE OF THE PROPERTY & SINGLE 

STOREY TO THE REAR

44 HEATHWOOD ROAD, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

4JP

Permission 

be granted

18/01083/DCH 08/05/2018  50 TrueAlexander 27/06/2018PROPOSED TWO-STOREY 

EXTENSION TO SIDE OF EXISTING 

DWELLING

86 PANTBACH ROAD, 

BIRCHGROVE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1UD

Permission 

be granted

18/00891/DCH 18/04/2018  47 TrueGrogan 04/06/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO SIDE AND REAR AT 

PROPERTY. ALSO, PROPOSED 

ENLARGEMENT OF EXISTING REAR 

FACING DORMER

131 PANTBACH ROAD, 

BIRCHGROVE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1TY

Permission 

be granted



18/00930/DCH 01/05/2018  43 TrueGagg 13/06/2018TAKE DOWN EXISTING SINGLE 

STOREY KITCHEN EXTENSION. 

BUILD NEW SINGLE STOREY 

KITCHEN DINING ROOM TO REAR OF 

PROPERTY WITH NARROW SIDE 

SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

FORM NEW GROUND FLOOR WC 

AND UTILITY AREA.

47 ST AMBROSE ROAD, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

4BH

Permission 

be granted

18/00827/DCH 09/04/2018  65 FalseAttwoodd-Codd 13/06/2018ADDITION OF DORMER TO FRONT 

ROOF, ALTERATIONS TO REAR 

ROOF TO ACCOMMODATE FIRST 

FLOOR EXTENSION AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF GARAGES TO 

REAR

205 KING GEORGE V 

DRIVE EAST, HEATH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4ER

Permission 

be granted

18/00929/DCH 04/05/2018  46 TrueBarnhouse 19/06/2018NEW LOFT CONVERSION WITH 

REAR DORMER AND BUILT UP 

GABLE END VELUX ROOM LIGHTS 

TO FRONT ELEVATION.

17 HEATHWOOD GROVE, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

3RD

Permission 

be granted

18/00878/DCH 24/04/2018  57 FalseSmart 20/06/2018SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND REAR 

EXTENSION

102 ST ANTHONY ROAD, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

4DJ

Permission 

be granted

18/01006/DCH 30/04/2018  51 TrueGallivan 20/06/2018PART 2 AND SINGLE STOREY SIDE 

AND REAR EXTENSION. LOFT 

EXTENSION WITH REAR DORMER 

AND HIP TO GABLE. ROOF LIGHTS 

INSERTED TO FRONT ROOF SLOPE.

7 CRYSTAL RISE, HEATH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4HP

Permission 

be granted

18/01355/DCH 12/06/2018  13 TrueSchuchardt 25/06/2018TO COMBINE SEPARATE TWO REAR 

DOORS INTO SINGLE PATIO DOOR 

ARRANGEMENT AND  RELOCATE 

OBSCURED EN-SUITE WINDOW 

FROM REAR TO SIDE ELEVATION - 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED UNDER 

18/00485/DCH

90 KING GEORGE V DRIVE 

NORTH, HEATH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 4EG

Permission 

be granted

18/01074/DCH 04/05/2018  34 TrueWelsh 07/06/2018FRONT ENTRANCE PORCH AND 

REAR GARAGE EXTENSION

89 KING GEORGE V DRIVE 

NORTH, HEATH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 4EG

Permission 

be granted

18/01017/DCH 30/04/2018  38 TrueCresswell 07/06/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING KITCHEN 

EXTENSION AND CONSTRUCTION 

OF NEW SINGLE STOREY 

KITCHEN/DINER WITH UTILITY 

ROOM.

23 CRYSTAL WOOD 

ROAD, HEATH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 4HU

Permission 

be granted



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00963/MNR 25/04/2018  57 FalseThriepland 21/06/2018DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING TWO 

STOREY BUILDING AND 

REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE TO 

PROVIDE 2NO. APARTMENTS, 

PARKING AND AMENITY SPACE

ISTL ENGINEERING LTD, 

1A DALE AVENUE, 

BIRCHGROVE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 4QQ

Permission 

be granted

LISV

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00905/DCH 17/04/2018  70 FalseBatholomew 26/06/2018INFILL AND KNOCK-THROUGH TO 

HALL WITH DORMER ROOF 

EXTENSION

WEST HILL, ST MELLONS 

ROAD, LISVANE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0SH

Permission 

be granted

18/00844/DCH 18/04/2018  72 FalseMOSS 29/06/2018PROPOSED TWO STOREY AND SIDE 

EXTENSION AND CONVERSION OF 

GARAGE TO FORM HABITABLE 

ROOM

29 BLOSSOM DRIVE, 

LISVANE, CARDIFF, CF14 

0BE

Permission 

be granted

18/01098/DCH 09/05/2018  23 TrueThomas 01/06/2018AMENDMENTS TO 17/02360/DCH 

(DEMOLISH A SINGLE STOREY REAR 

DOUBLE GARAGE AND THE 

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY 

PITCHED ROOF REAR EXTENSION 

AND A CAR PORT CANOPY WITH A 

NEW PARKING HARD STANDING AND 

ANCILLARY EXTERNAL WORKS).

38 RIDGEWAY, LISVANE, 

CARDIFF, CF14 0RS

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/00012/MJR 05/01/2018  174 FalseRedrow Homes Limited 28/06/2018RESERVED MATTERS FOR 

14/02891/MJR RELATING TO LAYOUT, 

SCALE, APPEARANCE OF 

BUILDINGS, MEANS OF ACCESS 

(WHERE NOT ALREADY PERMITTED 

BY THE PERMISSION) AND 

LANDSCAPING FOR PHASE 1A OF 

THE SITE COMPRISING 45 

DWELLINGS

PHASE 1A, 

CHURCHLANDS LAND 

NORTH AND EAST OF 

LISVANE, LISVANE, 

CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00927/MNR 19/04/2018  70 FalseS.A. Brain and 

Company Ltd

28/06/2018ERECTION OF A CHILDREN'S PLAY 

AREA IN AMENITY GROUNDS OF 

PUBLIC HOUSE

TY MAWR ARMS, GRAIG 

ROAD, LISVANE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0UF

Permission 

be granted

17/02722/MNR 14/11/2017  211 FalseRepresentative of 

Parochial Church 

Council of St Denis 

13/06/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING TWO 

STOREY BUILDING AND DETACHED 

GARAGE, REPLACEMENT WITH TWO 

STORY BUILDING AND SINGLE 

STOREY EXTENSION, COMPRISING 

GROUND FLOOR COMMUNITY 

MEETING ROOMS AND OFFICE 

INCLUDING ANCILLARY FACILITIES 

FOR ST DENYS CHURCH, AND TWO 

APARTMENTS AT THE FIRST FLOOR

7 CHURCH ROAD, 

LISVANE, CARDIFF, CF14 

0SJ

Permission 

be granted

LLAN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00973/DCH 26/04/2018  47 TrueCrowley 12/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR LOUNGE 

EXTENSION

8 BANKSIDE CLOSE, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9EQ

Permission 

be granted

18/00662/DCH 20/03/2018  76 FalseCarney 04/06/2018LOFT CONVERSION INCLUDING 

REAR ROOF EXTENSION (DORMER 

WINDOW) WITH JULIET BALCONY. 

ROOF LIGHTS TO FRONT ELEVATION

3 CEFN ONN MEADOWS, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0FL

Planning 

Permission 

be refused



18/01080/DCH 05/05/2018  46 TrueEvans 20/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 169 FIDLAS ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5LZ

Permission 

be granted

18/01007/DCH 04/05/2018  46 TrueRodgers 19/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 24 HEOL Y BARCUD, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9JB

Permission 

be granted

18/01048/DCH 02/05/2018  42 TruePryce 13/06/2018PROPOSED DETACHED DOUBLE 

GARAGE WITH GAMES ROOM

110 HEOL HIR, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5AD

Permission 

be granted

18/01011/DCH 01/05/2018  38 TrueStadden 08/06/2018TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO 

FRONT

19 GARRICK DRIVE, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9BH

Permission 

be granted

18/01143/DCH 15/05/2018  36 TrueJackson 20/06/2018DEMOLTION OF AN EXISTING SINGLE 

STOREY REAR EXTENSION, AND 

THE ERECTION OF A NEW SINGLE 

STOREY PITCHED ROOFED 

EXTENSION TO THE REAR, ALTER 

AN EXISTING WINDOW OPENING & 

MISCELLANEOUS EXTERNAL 

WORKS

59 STATION ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5UT

Permission 

be granted

18/01164/DCH 17/05/2018  32 TrueMarsh 18/06/2018PROPOSED TWO STOREY SIDE 

EXTENSION, SINGLE STOREY REAR 

EXTENSION AND PORCH 

EXTENSION

9 CANTREF CLOSE, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9HF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01420/MJR 18/06/2018  11 TrueHale Construction 29/06/2018MINOR ALTERATIONS TO THE 

FENESTRATION OF EACH BLOCK 

AND TO THE SITE LAYOUT 

CONFIGURATION - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 17/00967/MJR

LAND AT CHILTERN 

CLOSE, LLANISHEN, 

CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00894/MNR 17/04/2018  52 TrueRedman 08/06/2018VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 9 (CAR 

PARKING SPACES) AND 10 

(REPLACEMENT PARKING SPACE) 

AND REMOVAL OF CONDITION 11 

(VEHICLE PASSING PLACE) OF 

13/00942/DCO

18A WHITE BARN ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5HA

Permission 

be granted

LLDF

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00993/DCH 27/04/2018  45 TrueSingh 11/06/2018REAR EXTENSION 128 PENCISELY ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

1DR

Permission 

be granted

18/00550/DCH 20/03/2018  91 FalseCox 19/06/2018TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO SIDE 

AND REAR, SINGLE STOREY REAR 

EXTENSION AND DEMOLITION OF 

EXISTING DETACHED GARAGE

6 PENCISELY ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

1DG

Permission 

be granted

18/01030/DCH 01/05/2018  38 TrueHampson Jones 08/06/2018EXISTING CONSERVATORY 

REPLACED WITH SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION. NEW LOFT 

CONVERSION COMPRISING HIP TO 

GABLE AND DORMER TO REAR

18 GILIAN ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2PZ

Permission 

be granted

18/01123/DCH 18/05/2018  25 TrueCushing 12/06/2018REAR EXTENSION AND 

ALTERATIONS

6 LLANDAFF CHASE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2NA

Permission 

be granted

18/01238/DCH 24/05/2018  12 TrueHarris 05/06/2018PROPOSED ADDITION OF HIGH 

LEVEL VELUX ROOF LIGHT IN 

HIPPED ROOF TO SIDE OF 

PROPERTY - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 17/02974/DCH

82 PENCISELY ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

1DQ

Permission 

be granted



18/00889/DCH 30/04/2018  38 TrueHancock 07/06/2018CHANGE THE EXISTING LOUNGE 

WINDOW INTO A SET OF FRENCH 

DOORS

20 ROOKWOOD CLOSE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2NS

Permission 

be granted

18/01119/DCH 11/05/2018  33 TrueRoberts 13/06/2018PROPOSED 2 STOREY EXTENSION 

TO EXISTING PROPERTY TO 

INCLUDE NEW EN-SUITE BEDROOM, 

LIVING ROOM AND UTILITY ROOM.

110 FAIRWATER GROVE 

WEST, LLANDAFF, 

CARDIFF, CF5 2JR

Permission 

be granted

18/01207/DCH 22/05/2018  37 TrueSenjaliya 28/06/2018DEMOLISH EXISTING 

CONSERVATORY. PROPOSED 

SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND REAR 

EXTENSIONS.

20 HEOL URBAN, 

DANESCOURT, CARDIFF, 

CF5 2QP

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

17/01464/MNR 07/07/2017  332 FalseRees 04/06/2018DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING TWO 

STOREY DWELLING AND GARAGE 

TO PROVIDE A LARGE 6 NO. 

BEDROOM, THREE STOREY SINGLE 

FAMILY DWELLING WITH BASEMENT 

AND GARAGE ALONGSIDE 

ASSOCIATED AMENITY SPACE

16 THE AVENUE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2LQ

Permission 

be granted

18/00828/MNR 13/04/2018  56 TrueLLANDAFF R.F.C. 08/06/2018INSTALLATION OF SOLAR PANELS 

ON ROOF

LLANDAFF RUGBY 

FOOTBALL CLUB, 

WESTERN AVENUE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2AZ

Permission 

be granted

LLRU

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01142/DCH 15/05/2018  35 TruePerryman 19/06/2018SINGLE STOREY LEAN TO SIDE 

EXTENSION TO CREATE A 

DAYROOM/BEDROOM AND EN-SUITE

174 LLANRUMNEY 

AVENUE, LLANRUMNEY, 

CARDIFF, CF3 4EB

Permission 

be granted



PENT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00972/DCH 25/04/2018  44 TrueDeen 08/06/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR LEAN-TO 

EXTENSION TO ENLARGE EXISTING 

KITCHEN & CREATE NEW BEDROOM 

& EN-SUITE IN ROOFSPACE 

INCLUDING NEW FLAT ROOF 

DORMER

88 AEL-Y-BRYN, 

LLANEDEYRN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 9LL

Permission 

be granted

PENY

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00592/DCH 01/05/2018  42 TrueYapp 12/06/20182 STOREY REAR EXTENSION 142 MARLBOROUGH 

ROAD, ROATH, CARDIFF, 

CF23 5BZ

Permission 

be granted

18/00685/DCH 03/04/2018  66 FalseMr & Mrs Song 08/06/2018CONSTRUCTION OF EXTERNAL 

OUTBUILDING (SUNHOUSE) WITHIN 

REAR GARDEN

104 CYNCOED ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5SJ

Permission 

be granted

18/00324/DCH 06/03/2018  87 FalseFoster 01/06/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION 

& A REAR/SIDE DORMER TO 

EXISTING FLATS

43 PEN-Y-LAN ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5HZ

Permission 

be granted

18/00869/DCH 13/04/2018  55 TrueGorman 07/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR FIRST FLOOR 

SIDE EXTENSION INCLUDING LOFT 

CONVERSION AND CONSTRUCTION 

OF NEW DETACHED GARAGE AND 

GARDEN STORE WITH ALTERATIONS 

TO FRONT DRIVE AND EXTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS

FROYLE, 48 TY-GWYN 

ROAD, PENYLAN, 

CARDIFF, CF23 5JG

Permission 

be granted

18/00955/DCH 24/04/2018  55 TruePlummer 18/06/2018TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION, 

SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, 

FRONT PORCH AND SINGLE STOREY 

GRANNY ANNEX/FLAT TO REAR 

GARDEN.

35 OAK WOOD AVENUE, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9EY

Permission 

be granted



18/00913/DCH 24/04/2018  66 FalseLittleboy 29/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 28 MELROSE AVENUE, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9AR

Permission 

be granted

18/01046/DCH 15/05/2018  44 TrueHAINES 28/06/2018RAISING ROOF ON GARAGE AND 

CONVERTING TO ANCILLARY USE TO 

MAIN DWELLING

53 CYNCOED ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5SB

Permission 

be granted

18/01094/DCH 09/05/2018  34 TrueBanks 12/06/2018SMALL SINGLE ROOM EXTENSION AT 

REAR TO EXISTING DWELLING

14 MELROSE AVENUE, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9AR

Permission 

be granted

18/01023/DCH 01/05/2018  37 TrueHill 07/06/2018CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE 

STOREY REAR EXTENSION TO 

ENLARGE EXISTING KITCHEN AND 

DINING SPACE

22 WATERLOO GARDENS, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5AB

Permission 

be granted

18/00599/DCH 22/05/2018  36 TrueNadeem 27/06/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY LINK 

EXTENSION AND EXTENSIONS AND 

ALTERATIONS TO DETACHED 

GARAGE TO FORM ATTACHED 

RESIDENTIAL ACCOMMODATION

22 CYNCOED ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5SG

Permission 

be granted

18/01061/DCH 18/05/2018  40 TrueSilk 27/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

PLUS LOFT CONVERSION WITH 'HIP 

TO GABLE' EXTENSION AND 

ASSOCIATED WORKS

52 WATERLOO ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9BH

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

17/00763/MNR 07/04/2017  441 FalseARP Properties Ltd 22/06/2018ERECTION OF TWO ANCILLARY POD 

UNITS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO 

VEHICULAR ACCESS AND CAR PARK

AVENUE RETAIL PARK, 

NEWPORT ROAD, 

PENYLAN

Permission 

be granted

PLAS

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/00990/DCH 03/05/2018  56 TrueSavage 28/06/2018CHANGE FRONT DOOR TO BE MORE 

IN KEEPING WITH LOCAL 

CHARACTER

57 BANGOR STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3LQ

Permission 

be granted

18/01192/DCH 21/05/2018  30 TrueCEO INVESTMENT 

PROPERTIES LTD

20/06/2018FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSION, 

REAR / SIDE DORMER TO EXISTING 

REAR TOP FLAT

13 NORTHCOTE STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3BH

Permission 

be granted

18/01196/DCH 21/05/2018  30 TrueTHRIFT ENERGY 20/06/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION 

AND REAR DORMER WITH 

ROOFLIGHT

15 BRAEVAL STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

4SJ

Permission 

be granted

18/00934/DCH 04/05/2018  35 TrueCiocca 08/06/2018HIP TO GABLE CONVERSION & REAR 

DORMER EXTENSION

2 CRWYS ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 4NJ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00664/MNR 09/04/2018  56 TrueIbrahim 04/06/2018CHANGE OF USE AND AMENDMENTS 

TO THE EXISTING 

BUILDING/STRUCTURE. ADDITIONAL 

USE SHISHA AND DESSERT AREA, 

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL 

CHANGES, GROUND FLOOR

152-154 CITY ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3DR

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00043/MNR 18/04/2018  47 TrueReginvest UK Sarl 04/06/2018ERECTION OF A 48-SHEET DIGITAL 

ADVERTISING DISPLAY

EASTGATE HOUSE, 35-43 

NEWPORT ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 0AB

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/00435/MNR 22/02/2018  119 FalseGuru Estates 21/06/2018CONVERSION OF PART OF FORMER 

KITCHEN TO ONE A1 SHOP UNIT AND 

NEW SHOP FRONT

REAR OF 131 ALBANY 

ROAD FRONTING 

WELLFIELD PLACE, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3NS

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01031/MNR 01/05/2018  51 TruePesticco 21/06/2018CONSTRUCTION OF 1 BED COACH 

HOUSE APARTMENT OVER EXISTING 

2 GARAGES.

PARTRIDGE HOUSE, 

PARTRIDGE ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3QW

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01058/MNR 03/05/2018  36 TrueAshi Properties Ltd 08/06/2018PROPOSED CONVERSION OF 7 BED 

HMO DWELLING, TO 4NO 

SELF-CONTAINED FLATS

30 RUSSELL STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3BG

Permission 

be granted



18/01100/MNR 09/05/2018  34 TrueAwwad 12/06/2018CONVERSION OF FIVE BEDROOM 

HOUSE INTO 4 SELF CONTAINED 

FLATS WITH SINGLE STOREY REAR 

EXTENSION AND EXTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS AND LOFT 

CONVERSION

2 KINCRAIG STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3HW

Permission 

be granted

18/01290/MNR 01/06/2018  11 TrueProsser 12/06/2018REMOVAL OF CONDITIONS 6, 7 & 8 

RELATING TO THE CODE FOR 

SUSTAINABLE HOMES - PREVIOUSLY 

IMPOSED UNDER PLANNING 

PERMISSION 13/00695/DCI

REAR OF 49 ELM STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

18/01178/MNR 18/05/2018  33 TrueRoberts. 20/06/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY SIDE 

AND REAR EXTENSIONS. 

PROPOSED SECOND STOREY REAR 

EXTENSIONS. PROPOSED REAR 

DORMER. CONVERSION TO 4 No. 

FLATS.

140 RICHMOND ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3BX

Permission 

be granted

PON

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01096/DCH 17/05/2018  39 TrueYasin 25/06/2018CONSERVATORY TO REAR OF 

HOUSE

9 HEOL BENNETT, OLD ST 

MELLONS, CARDIFF, CF3 

6AF

Permission 

be granted

18/01265/DCH 30/05/2018  21 TrueSpargo 20/06/2018BRICK BUILT SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO THE REAR OF 

EXISTING BUILDING

26 CLOS NANT Y COR, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8LD

Permission 

be granted

18/01176/DCH 18/05/2018  40 TrueLacey 27/06/2018DETACHED DOUBLE GARAGE WITH 

STORAGE SPACE OVER

SHERWOOD, TY'R WINCH 

ROAD, OLD ST MELLONS, 

CARDIFF, CF3 5UX

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01329/MJR 06/06/2018  8 TrueSouth Wales Fire and 

Rescue Service

14/06/2018VARIOUS AMENDMENTS INCLUDING 

NEW BOUNDARY FENCING AND 

GATES, ALTERED PARKING SPACES, 

LPG TANK COMPOUND, PUMP 

HOUSE AND WOOD STORE, 

SHELTER CONFIGURATION, 

LANDSCAPING, ALTERATIONS TO 

CFBT BUILDING AND WELFARE 

BUILDING AND NEW DRAINAGE 

BASIN- PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 

UNDER 16/02659/MJR

CARDIFF GATE TRAINING 

AND DEVELOPMENT 

CENTRE, CHURCH ROAD, 

OLD ST MELLONS

Permission 

be granted

PYCH

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00372/MNR 19/02/2018  114 False. 13/06/2018RENEWAL OF PLANNING 

PERMISSION 13/00385/DCO FOR THE 

CONVERSION OF BARN TO 

RESIDENTIAL AND UPGRADING OF 

BARN B TO FORM STABLES / STORE

THE BARNS SOUTH OF 

ELM COTTAGE, 

HEOL-Y-PARC, PENTYRCH

Permission 

be granted

RADY

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00862/DCH 13/04/2018  54 TrueYoung 06/06/2018NEW 2-STOREY EXTENSION TO THE 

FRONT OF THE EXISTING HOUSE, 

ATTIC CONVERSION, AND GARAGE 

CONVERSION AND EXTENSION TO 

PROVIDE A NEW FIRST FLOOR OVER 

THE GARAGE

37 DAN-Y-BRYN AVENUE, 

RADYR, CARDIFF, CF15 

8DD

Permission 

be granted

18/00799/DCH 05/04/2018  74 FalseWorkman 18/06/2018FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION TO SIDE 

OF DWELLING WITH JULIETTE 

BALCONY

15 MAES YR AWEL, 

RADYR, CARDIFF, CF15 

8AN

Permission 

be granted



18/00733/DCH 05/04/2018  77 FalseSanders 21/06/2018TIMBER CLADDED TIMBER FRAME 

EXTENSION ONTO EXISTING 

GARAGE TO CREATE A SPARE 

BEDROOM

35 LLANTARNAM DRIVE, 

RADYR, CARDIFF, CF15 

8GA

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/00985/DCH 11/05/2018  38 TrueADAMS 18/06/2018TO ERECT A WHITE PVCu FRAMED 

CONSERVATORY TO THE REAR OF 

THE PROPERTY

7 SPRINGFIELD 

GARDENS, 

MORGANSTOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF15 8LP

Permission 

be granted

18/01199/DCH 25/05/2018  33 TrueThomas 27/06/2018REAR SINGLE-STOREY AND 

TWO-STOREY EXTENSION, AND 

SIDE TWO-STOREY EXTENSION

2 MEADOWFIELD WAY, 

MORGANSTOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF15 8FN

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00275/MJR 05/02/2018  135 FalseRedrow Homes (South 

Wales)

20/06/2018AMENDED DISCHARGE OF 

CONDITION 20 (LANDSCAPE 

SCHEME FOR APPROVED ACCESSES 

AND HIGHWAY WORKS) OF 

14/02157/MJR

LAND NORTH AND SOUTH 

OF LLANTRISANT ROAD, 

NORTH WEST CARDIFF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

RHIW

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00978/DCH 25/04/2018  57 FalsePell 21/06/2018SIDE AND REAR ROOF EXTENSION 83 WENALLT ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6TP

Permission 

be granted

18/01035/DCH 02/05/2018  47 TrueCoan 18/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

TO EXTEND KITCHEN

13 HEOL BRIWNANT, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6QF

Permission 

be granted



18/00526/DCH 26/03/2018  72 FalseCometson 06/06/2018PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR 

EXTENSION ON EXISTING GROUND 

FLOOR EXTENSION TO 

REAR.ALTERATION TO THE FRONT 

CONSERVATORY. SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO THE SIDE. RAISE 

THE RIDGE HEIGHT

4 LON-YSGUBOR, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6SG

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/00839/DCH 11/04/2018  56 TrueLlewellyn 06/06/2018FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION TO REAR 15 WENALLT ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6SA

Permission 

be granted

18/01022/DCH 01/05/2018  57 FalseThomas 27/06/2018TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO REAR 175 PANTBACH ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6AD

Permission 

be granted

18/00923/DCH 20/04/2018  70 FalseJones 29/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

WITH BIFOLD DOORS AND VELUX 

WINDOWS. REAR DORMER AND 

FRONT SINGLE DORMER. 

CONVERSION OF GARAGE TO GYM

31 HEOL TY'N Y COED, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6RA

Permission 

be granted

18/00663/DCH 29/03/2018  92 FalseDelfino 29/06/2018REAR FIRST FLOOR ORIEL/BAY 

WINDOW WITH JULIETTE BALCONY, 

REAR DORMER EXTENSION

107 HEOL LLANISHEN 

FACH, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 6RE

Permission 

be granted

18/01081/DCH 04/05/2018  56 TrueNewman 29/06/2018PROPOSED REAR AND SIDE 

EXTENSION TO THE EXISTING 

RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY, TO 

REPLACE THE EXISTING LEAN-TO 

EXTENSION AND GARAGE

185 PANTBACH ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6AD

Permission 

be granted

18/01162/DCH 17/05/2018  39 TruePhillips 25/06/2018SINGLE STOREY ORANGERY TO 

REAR OF PROPERTY

20 HEOL-YR-EFAIL, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 4SR

Permission 

be granted

18/00954/DCH 23/04/2018  39 TrueMarks 01/06/2018SIDE SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION 

AND LOFT CONVERSION WITH 

DORMER. HIP ROOF CHANGED TO 

GABLE.

11 COED YR YNN, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6PH

Permission 

be granted

18/01128/DCH 22/05/2018  21 Truemcdean 12/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 217 PANTBACH ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6AE

Permission 

be granted



18/01197/DCH 23/05/2018  20 TrueHudson 12/06/2018TO ADD AN OBSCURED 

NON-OPENING WINDOW TO THE 

GABLE END OF THE PERMITTED 

ATTIC CONVERSION - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 17/01315/DCH

10 PEN-Y-GROES 

AVENUE, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4SP

Permission 

be granted

18/01179/DCH 21/05/2018  37 TrueJones 27/06/2018DEMOLITION OF OUTBUILDING AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF SINGLE STOREY 

REAR EXTENSION

2 CEIRIOG DRIVE, 

PANTMAWR, CARDIFF, 

CF14 7TU

Permission 

be granted

18/01378/DCH 14/06/2018  13 TrueBray 27/06/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 37 PORTHAMAL ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6AQ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00774/MNR 03/04/2018  79 FalseDavid Ricketts & Co 21/06/2018ADDITIONAL 2 STOREY OFFICE 

SUITE

DAVID RICKETTS ESTATE 

AGENTS, 493 CAERPHILLY 

ROAD, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4SN

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01163/MNR 23/05/2018  33 TrueDrane 25/06/2018TWO BEDROOM DETACHED 

DWELLING

LAND TO THE REAR OF 

363 AND 365 CAERPHILLY 

ROAD, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4SH

Permission 

be granted

RIVE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00909/DCH 02/05/2018  49 TrueMansfield 20/06/2018REPLACEMENT OF ALL WINDOWS 

TO FRONT OF HOUSE

14 PLASTURTON AVENUE, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9HH

Permission 

be granted

18/00988/DCH 03/05/2018  50 TrueMorgan 22/06/2018GROUND FLOOR SIDE EXTENSION 8 TEILO STREET, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9JN

Permission 

be granted



18/00995/DCH 27/04/2018  46 TrueSingh 12/06/2018RE-SUBMISSION FOR A PROPOSED 

SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

TO ENLARGE KITCHEN

21 NEVILLE STREET, 

RIVERSIDE, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6LP

Permission 

be granted

18/00879/DCH 16/04/2018  51 TrueMorris 06/06/2018ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY 

REAR AND SIDE EXTENSION

32 RYDER STREET, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9BT

Permission 

be granted

18/01204/DCH 21/05/2018  37 TrueEvans 27/06/2018DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING 

SINGLE STORY KITCHEN 

EXTENSION, AND REPLACE WITH A 

LARGER SINGLE STORY EXTENSION

11 WYNDHAM ROAD, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9EJ

Permission 

be granted

RUMN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01026/DCH 09/05/2018  41 TrueDolphin 19/06/2018EXTENSION TO SIDE AND 

ALTERATIONS TO GARAGE TO 

CREATE AND ADDITIONAL BEDROOM

48 TY-MAWR AVENUE, 

RUMNEY, CARDIFF, CF3 

3AG

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

17/01681/MJR 07/07/2017  357 FalseWates Residential 29/06/2018DEVELOPMENT OF 16 DWELLINGS 

ON LAND OFF LLANDUDNO ROAD, 5 

AFFORDABLE DWELLINGS, 11 OPEN 

MARKET SALES WITH ASSOCIATED 

LANDSCAPING, ACCESS AND 

HIGHWAY WORKS

LAND OFF LLANDUDNO 

ROAD, RUMNEY

Permission 

be granted

SPLO

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01451/DCH 16/06/2018  13 TrueThomas 29/06/2018SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 

TO PROVIDE IMPROVED KITCHEN 

ACCOMMODATION. NEW/AMENDED 

WINDOWS/DOORS

203 CARLISLE STREET, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

2PE

Permission 

be granted

18/01243/DCH 25/05/2018  35 TrueHay 29/06/2018DEMOLITION OF SUN ROOM TO BE 

REPLACED WITH A SINGLE STOREY 

REAR EXTENSION

132 RAILWAY STREET, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

2NG

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00968/MNR 24/04/2018  56 TrueSecond Horizon Limited 19/06/2018TO CONSTRUCT 18 ADDITIONAL CAR 

PARKING SPACES

ANCHOR COURT, KEEN 

ROAD, SPLOTT, CARDIFF, 

CF24 5JW

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

A/18/00054/MNR 18/05/2018  21 TrueS A Brain and Company 

Ltd

08/06/2018SIGNAGE COURTNEY HOUSE, 

PACIFIC BUSINESS PARK, 

PACIFIC ROAD, SPLOTT, 

CARDIFF, CF24 5HJ

Permission 

be granted

TROW

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00604/DCH 14/03/2018  86 FalseHafod Resources 08/06/2018GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION. TO 

THE REAR OF THE PROPERTY TO 

CREATE AN ACCESSIBLE BEDROOM 

AND SHOWER ROOM AS WELL AS 

UTILITY ROOM, WITH ASSOCIATED 

EXTERNAL AND DRAINAGE WORKS.

9 CLOS CAS-BACH, ST 

MELLONS, CARDIFF, CF3 

0AU

Permission 

be granted

18/00861/DCH 18/04/2018  55 TrueBailey 12/06/2018REMOVAL OF EXISTING GARAGE; 

ERECTION OF TWO STOREY 

EXTENSION TO SIDE.

7 MOOR KING CLOSE, ST 

MELLONS, CARDIFF, CF3 

0RF

Permission 

be granted

18/00932/DCH 21/04/2018  47 TrueJonuska/Matthews 07/06/2018ERECT A CONSERVATORY 3.6X3.2M 16 LLANINA GROVE, 

TROWBRIDGE, CARDIFF, 

CF3 1SW

Permission 

be granted



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01170/MJR 21/05/2018  25 TrueBarratt David Wilson 

Homes South Wales Ltd

15/06/2018REMOVAL OF CONDITION 3 OF 

16/01150/MJR AS NO PUBLIC SEWER 

CROSSES THE SITE

LAND ADJACENT TO 

SPRINGFIELD 

NURSERIES, NEWPORT 

ROAD, ST MELLONS, 

CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

18/01253/MJR 31/05/2018  25 TrueWates Residential 25/06/2018ALTERNATIVE HOUSE TYPES FOR 

PLOTS 136 AND 137 - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 16/01260/MJR

WEST OF WILLOWBROOK 

DRIVE AND THE SOUTH 

OF CRICKHOWELL ROAD, 

CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

H/17/00001/MNR 25/07/2017  330 FalseIQE Europe Ltd 20/06/2018STORAGE OF HAZARDOUS 

SUBSTANCES (NEW CONSENT 

WHILST RETAINING EXISTING 

CONSENTS)

IQE EUROPE, PASCAL 

CLOSE, ST MELLONS, 

CARDIFF, CF3 0LW

Permission 

be granted

WHI

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00974/DCH 25/04/2018  56 TrueShepperd 20/06/2018PROPOSED REAR FLAT ROOF 

DORMER TO MAIN ROOF TO CREATE 

A HABITABLE ROOM WITH EN-SUITE

34 CORYTON CRESCENT, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 7EQ

Permission 

be granted

18/00809/DCH 13/04/2018  53 TrueGibbs 05/06/2018REPLACEMENT OF 9 WINDOWS TO 

FRONT ELEVATION

14 WESTBOURNE 

CRESCENT, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2BL

Permission 

be granted



18/01078/DCH 08/05/2018  50 TrueBurnell 27/06/2018GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION TO AN 

EXISTING KITCHEN

97 VELINDRE ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2TG

Permission 

be granted

18/01045/DCH 14/05/2018  37 TrueCreemer 20/06/2018HIP TO GABLE ROOF EXTENSION, 

REAR DORMER AND 

SINGLE-STOREY REAR EXTENSION

2 CRADOC ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1HQ

Permission 

be granted

18/00794/DCH 02/05/2018  36 TrueLansing 07/06/2018FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION OF A 

RESIDENTIAL HOUSE TO BE BUILT 

ABOVE EXISTING STRUCTURE. 

EXTENSION TO COMPRISE OF TWO 

BEDROOMS

40 CLOS TY CLYD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2HP

Permission 

be granted

18/01167/DCH 21/05/2018  37 TrueNixon 27/06/2018ORANGERY EXTENSION TO SIDE 

ELEVATION

10 HEOL MADOC, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1HB

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01043/MNR 02/05/2018  56 TrueThe County Council of 

the City and County of 

Cardiff

27/06/2018NEW PREFABRICATED 5 

CLASSROOM TEACHING BLOCK 

WITH STAFF ROOM AND 

ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL WORKS TO 

REPLACE AN EXISTING 

PREFABRICATED TEACHING BLOCK 

WHICH IS TO BE DEMOLISHED.

WHITCHURCH HIGH 

LOWER SCHOOL, 

GLAN-Y-NANT TERRACE, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1WL

Permission 

be granted

18/00583/MNR 19/03/2018  74 FalseHJW Estates Ltd 01/06/2018CONSTRUCTION OF 3 NEW 

DWELLINGS

LAND REAR OF 88 

MERTHYR ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1DJ

Permission 

be granted



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5a 18/00735/MJR - Brains Brewery, Crawshay Street, Butetown
	LOCATION PLAN.pdf
	Sheets
	90010 - Location Plan


	PROPOSED LOCATION PLAN.pdf
	Sheets
	90012 - Proposed Site Plan



	6 Applications decided by Delegated Powers - June 2018



